
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A WORKSHOP AND REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:    TUESDAY, APRIL 25, 2023 

TIME:    5:30 PM 

PLACE:    PHARR CITY HALL 

    2nd FLOOR CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

118 SOUTH CAGE BLVD. 

    PHARR, TEXAS 78577  

     

PRESIDING: S. DAVID DEANDA, JR, CHAIRMAN 
 

                  
                              An electronic copy of the agenda packet can be obtained at www.hcrma.net  
 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
INVOCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER OF A WORKSHOP 
 

1. Review of Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority.  

2. Review of Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
3. Review of the Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2023. 

 
ADJOURNMENT OF WORKSHOP 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document 

– HCRMA Staff 

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA. 

 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters  listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing 

Body and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no  separate discussion of  these  items; however,  if 
discussion is desired, that item(s) will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
The Governing Body may also elect to go into Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not 
such  item(s) are posted as an Executive Session  Item, at any  time during  the meeting when authorized by 
provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.) 

 



A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held March 28, 2023.

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from March 8, 2023 to April 7, 2023.

C. Approval of Financial Reports for January 2023.
D. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2023.

3. REGULAR AGENDA

A. Resolution 2023‐14 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Statement and 
Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.

B. Resolution 2023‐15 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Compliance Report for the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.

C. Resolution  2023‐22  –  Award  of  365  Tollway  Toll  Collection  System  Installation,  Integration  and 
Maintenance Contract.

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

A. Discussion and consideration of Proposal to act as Local Sponsor of Rail Projects.

5. TABLED ITEMS

A. None.

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)

A. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the 365 Tollway Toll Collection System 
Installation, Integration and Maintenance Contract (551.071 T.G.C.).

B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Proposal to act as Local Sponsor of Rail 
Projects (Section 551.071 T.G.C).

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.).

D. Consultation  with  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  the  voluntary  acquisition  of  real  property  for 
various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.).

E. Consultation  with  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  the  acquisition,  including  the  use  of  Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.).

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.).

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 



 
 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

 

I,  the Undersigned Authority, do hereby certify  that  the attached agenda of  the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board in the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority  office  (203 W. Newcombe Ave,  Pharr,  Texas  78577),  a  place  convenient  and  readily 
accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was posted on the  19th   day of April 2023 at 5:00 pm and 
will remain so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting in accordance 
with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
                                           Maria E. Alaniz         
                Administrative Assistant 

 
Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Maria E. 
Alaniz at 956‐402‐4762 at least 96 hours before the meeting. 
 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 

Public  Comment  Policy:  “At  the  beginning  of  each  HCRMA meeting,  the  HCRMA  will  allow  for  an  open  public 

forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one‐half (1/2) hour in length and each speaker will be 

allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak.  Speakers addressing the Board through a translator will be allowed 

a maximum of six (6) minutes.   

 

All  individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to do so, prior to the open comment period. For 

meetings being held by  telephonic or videoconference,  individuals may contact Maria. E. Alaniz at  (956) 402‐4762 

before 5:00 pm day of the meeting.  

  

 The purpose of this comment period is to provide the public an opportunity to address issues or topics that are under 

the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part of the posted agenda for the meeting, 

HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No action or discussion shall be taken on 

issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. Members of the public may be recognized 

on posted agenda  items deemed appropriate by  the Chairman as  these  items are considered, and  the  same  time 

limitations applies.” 

 

Note:   Participation by Telephone/Video Conference Call – One or more member of the HCRMA Board of Directors 

may participate  in  this meeting  through  a  telephone/video  conference  call,  as  authorized by  Sec. 370.262,  Texas 

Transportation Code.    

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 1 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     1                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/17/23                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/25/23  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 1 – REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2022 FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of annual Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report prepared by Burton  

McCumber & Longoria, LLP for Fiscal Year 2022.  The report is required by Texas Administrative 
Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission.  

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Presentation only.          
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 2 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/17/23                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/25/23  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 2 – REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2022 COMPLIANCE 

REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.    
     

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of Annual Compliance Report for Fiscal Year 2022.  The report is required by Texas  

Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority and  
Audits), as amended            

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.           
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
Compliance Report 

Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G 

§26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission 

Compliance Rule Compliance Statement Certification 
Rule §26.61 Written Reports:   
The annual operating and capital budgets 
adopted by the RMA year.   

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA adopted the FY 2023 
Operating & Capital Budget on 
December 13, 2022. 

Any annual financial information and notices 
of material events required to be disclosed 
under Rule 15c2-12 of the SEC.  

Not applicable.  

To the extent not disclosed in another 
report required in this compliance report, a 
statement of any surplus revenue held by 
the RMA and a summary of how it intends 
to use the surplus revenue.  

Not applicable. HCRMA does not 
have surplus revenue at this 
time. 

 

An independent auditor's review of the 
reports of investment transactions prepared 
under Government Code, §2256.023.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2022 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 25, 2023, which 
included a review of investment 
transactions. 

Rule §26.62 Annual Audit:   
The RMA shall maintain its books and 
records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United 
States and shall have an annual financial and 
compliance audit of such books and records.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2022 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 25, 2023. 

The annual audit shall be submitted to each 
county or city that is a part of the RMA 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal 
year, and conducted by an independent 
certified public accountant. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA has made the financial 
statement and independent 
auditors report available to all 
interested parties. 

All work papers and reports shall be 
retained for a minimum of four years from 
the date of the audit. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA’s record retention policy 
in compliance with this 
requirement. 

Rule §26.63 Other Reports to Counties and 
Cities: 

  

Provide other reports and information 
regarding its activities promptly when 
requested by the counties or cities. 

HCRMA is in compliance. All reports and activities are 
posted on the HCRMA web site 
at www.hcrma.net. 

Rule §26.64 Operating Records:   
The Department will have access to all 
operating and financial records of the RMA. 
The executive director will provide 
notification if access is desired by the 
department. 

HCRMA is in compliance.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop 
Item 3 



























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS   X AGENDA ITEM      1A 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 

4/18/2023 
  4/25/2023_

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON PROGRAM MANAGER ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT
AND IBTC ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE DOCUMENT

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:   X  Yes  No 

Report on 365 Tollway and IBTC Projects

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes  No   X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only. .  

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved   Disapproved   X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:  Approved   Disapproved    X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:  Approved  Disapproved   X_  None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved  None 

 Approved  Disapproved _  None 12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation: X

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved  Disapproved  _  None 



ardHCRMA Bo of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Forrest Runnels, Vice-Chairman
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer

Julio Cerda, Director

Juan Carlos Del Angel, Director

Gabriel Kamel, Director
Francisco “Frank” Pardo, Director

HCRMA Administrative Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Constr. Eng.
Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.

Ascencion Alonzo, Chief Financial Ofcr.

General Engineering Consultant
HDR ENGINEERING, INC.

1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING FOR APRIL 2023

www.hcrma.net Report on HCRMA Program Management Activity 
Chief Construction Engineer – Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM1

http://www.hcrma.net/


MISSION STATEMENT:
“To provide our 
customers with a rapid 
and reliable alternative 
for the safe and efficient 
movement of people, 
goods and services”

www.hcrma.net

►OVERVIEW
 365 TOLL Project Overview
 IBTC Project Overview
 Overweight Permit Summary
 Construction Economics Update

MISSION STATEMENT:
“ To provide our customers 
with a rapid and reliable 
alternative for the safe and 
efficient movement of 
people, goods and services”

2

http://www.hcrma.net/






MAJOR MILESTONES:
NEPA CLEARANCE 

07/03/2015
100% ROW ACQUIRED

PH 1: 365 SEG. 3 –
LET: 08/2015 
COMPLETED

PH 2: 365 TOLL
SEGS. 1 & 2 –

OPEN: 01/2 602

[SEGS. 1 & 2] LIMITS FROM 0.8 MI. W. FM 396 / ANZ. HWY.
TO US 281 / BSIF CONNECTOR [365 SEG. 3 COMPLETED]
[SEG. 4 FUTURE] LIMITS FROM FM 1016 / CONWAY 
TO 0.8 MI. W. FM396 / ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY



6









HCRMA – IBTC Project
CSJ#:0921-02-142

1 Environmental:  99% 

2 Preliminary Engineering: 75%

3 ROW & Utilities: 60%
63 of 186 parcels acquired

4 Design: 65%

5 Funding: 18%  $38M / $211,442,110

HCRMA IBTC - 0921-02-142 – FY 2026 
– Revising Costs and Funding (PE, ROW, C, CE)

– Pending FC

4

Recent Key Activity:
• Included in Border Master Plan- High Impact Project
• Received Environmental Classification of Environmental Assessment October 2017.
• Held Public Meeting March 2019.
• TxDOT approved schematic November 2021.
• Public Hearing held March 2022.
• Risk workshop held with TxDOT Portfolio Management Division April 2022.
• Requested Functional Classification: Principal Arterial
• Estimated NEPA clearance by May 2023.
• Schematic updates UPRR Structure Group for Railroad Bridge over BUS83
• Working with RGVMPO/TxDOT to federalize project
• TxDOT/FHWA to migrate project ON-SYSTEM





2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Environmental (Ongoing)

Surveys

ROW Title Research / Appraisals

ROW Acquisition (Remaining)

Plans, Specs., & Estimates

Utility Coord / Relocation

Constr. Contract Letting Phase

Construction Start

10 11 12

1 1 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

1 1 1 1 1

International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC) (CSJ: 0921-02-142)

42 MONTH CONSTRUCTION FROM SEPT 2025 ‐ MAR 2029

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1

O N DJ F M A M J J A S

8 9

1

2 3

1

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

10 11 12

2 3 4 5 6 7

J FM A M J AS O N D J F
Project Milestones

J F M A M J J A

1 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

J A S OJ F M A M N DS O N DJ M A M J J AS O N D J

1

1 1 1 1 10

1 11 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 11 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 11 1 1 1

11 1 11 1 1 1 1

1

Initiate RR 

30 % PS&E 60 % PS&E 90 % PS&E

95% PS&E

Complete RR 

Milestones Target Date  Updated Target Date
1 Start Date 

2 Feasibility Study

3 SCH/ENV WA

4 PSE WA 6/1/2022 1/1/2024

5 AFA 12/31/2021 9/30/2022

6 Geotechnical Report  9/1/2022 10/31/2023

7 Design Survey 1/31/2024

8 SUE 2/28/2025

9 Traffic Analysis 

10 Schematic 

11 PSE 30% 12/1/2022 7/31/2024

12 ENV Clearance  11/31/2021 5/31/2023

13 ROW Survey/Map 11/1/2021 8/31/2023

14 PSE 60% 12/1/2022 1/31/2025

15 PSE 95% 5/1/2023 10/31/2025

16 ENV Permits/Survey

17 ROW Acquisition  6/1/2022 12/31/2025

18 Utility Adjustments  10/1/2022 3/31/2026

19 PSE 100% 7/31/2023 3/31/2026

20 Railroad Coord. 1/1/2022 7/1/2022 ‐ 03/31/2025

21 Ready to Let 10/1/2023 9/1/2025













►OVERWEIGHT REPORT FOR April 2023:
January 1, 2023–March 31, 2023

OW

2 8 www.HCRMA.net

Total Permits Issued: 10,440
Total Amount Collected: $2,131,812
■ Convenience Fees: $ 43,812
■ Total Permit Fees: $2,088,000

– Pro Miles: $ 31,320
– TxDOT: $ 1,774,800
– HCRMA: $ 281,880

http://www.hcrma.net/


Notes:
1. The permit count for 2022 (41,104) ended with a +4.5% (increase of 1831)

compared to 2021 (39,273).
2. Monthly permit count of 3,982 represents a +16.81% (increase, 573)

compared to the same month in 2022 (3,409).

►OVERWEIGHT REPORT FOR 2023:
►JANUARY 1, 2023 – March 31, 2023 OW

2,642

2,218

3,409

3,188

4,270
4,171 4,132

4,009

3,431
3,346

3,188
3,100

3,399

3,059

3,982

2,000

2,250

2,500

2,750

3,000

3,250

3,500

3,750

4,000

4,250

4,500

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Overweight/Oversized Permit Count 
2022 - 2023 Monthly Comparison

2022 2023





Item 1B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

  X AGENDA ITEM        1B 
DATE SUBMITTED  04/18/2023 
MEETING DATE  04/25/2023 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS   
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY FOR THE 365 TOLLWAY PROJECT.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes  No

Report on 365 Tollway Project Construction Activities.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   Approved  Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved        Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

 Disapproved    X   None 11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:  X    Approved  Disapproved   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved   X   None 



ardHCRMA Bo of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman

Forrest Runnels, Vice-Chairman
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer

Julio Cerda, Director

Juan Carlos Del Angel, Director

Gabriel Kamel, Director
Francisco “Frank” Pardo, Director

HCRMA Administrative Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Constr. Eng.
Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.

Ascencion Alonzo, Chief Financial Ofcr.

General Engineering Consultant
HDR ENGINEERING, INC.

1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING FOR APRIL 2023

www.hcrma.net Report on HCRMA Construction  Report
Chief Construction Engineer – Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM1

http://www.hcrma.net/


MAJOR MILESTONES:
NEPA CLEARANCE 

07/03/2015
100% ROW ACQUIRED

PH 1: 365 SEG. 3 –
LET: 08/2015 
COMPLETED

PH 2: 365 TOLL
SEGS. 1 & 2 –

OPEN: 01/2 602

[SEGS. 1 & 2] LIMITS FROM 0.8 MI. W. FM 396 / ANZ. HWY.
TO US 281 / BSIF CONNECTOR [365 SEG. 3 COMPLETED]
[SEG. 4 FUTURE] LIMITS FROM FM 1016 / CONWAY 
TO 0.8 MI. W. FM396 / ANZALDUAS HIGHWAY



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 The Notice to Proceed (NTP) was issued to Pulice Construction Inc. (PCI) on February 15, 2022, with time 

charges commencing on March 17, 2022.

 The work under this contract shall be substantially completed within 1,264 CALENDAR days [September 22, 
2025] After Substantial Completion, Pulice will be allowed up to an additional 60 calendar days for Final 
Acceptance. Therefore, all improvements must be final accepted by [November 21, 2025].

 Working days will be charged Sunday through Saturday, including all holidays [with exception of: 

New Year’s Day (January 1st)
Independence Day (July 4th)
Labor Day (1st Monday in the month of September)
Thanksgiving Day and day after (4th Thursday and Friday in the month of November); 
Christmas Eve and Day (December 24th and 25th)]

regardless of weather conditions, material availability, or other conditions not under the 
control of the Contractor, except as expressly provided for in the Contract. If Contractor fails to 
complete the work on or before the contract time, Pulice Construction Inc. agrees to pay the
Authority $ 16,500 per day as liquidated damages to cover losses, expenses and damages of the
Authority for every Calendar Day which the Contractor fails to achieve Substantial Completion of
the Project.

 The total construction cost submitted $ 295,932,420.25.

7



SCHEDULE & CONSTRUCTION COSTS
Four (4) approved Changes Order(s): [$37,838,866.04] +0 days

 CO#1 11/11/2021 entering VECP process +000 days $000,000,000.00 .0%

 CO#2 12/21/2021 VECP Plan Revisions   +000 days $(38,010,382.63) (12.84%)

 CO#3 04/26/2022 VECP Contractor Risk +000 days $000,000,000.00 (0%)

 CO#4  01/24/2023  Drill Shaft                       +000  days   $171,516.59          0.06%

CHANGE ORDERS:

Change Order No.1 Summary: November 11,2021
 The Primary purpose of Change Order No. 1 is for the HCRMA and contractor to enter a defined VECP proves to reduce the overall cost of the project based on a

30% design furnished by the contractor.

 Cost to the Project include: 30% of 5% of the project savings to the project or direct costs to the contractor, whichever is less. These costs are intended to pay the

contractor for design work achieve a 30% design.

 The HCRMA assumes ownership of all design work developed by the contractor, and cost savings are shared by the HCRMA and contractor by 40% and 60%

respectively.

Change Order No. 2 Summary: December 21, 2021

 Change order No. 2 amended the contract price from $295,932,420.25 to 281,723,797.95.

 By execution of Change Order No. 1, the contractor completed a 30% design to an effort to estimate cost savings for the project. Payment for the contractor’s

initial design work is $613,285.06 in accordance with calculations presented in Change Order No. 1. This is the only cost due to the contractor based on the

execution of Change Order No. 2, and is non-participating.

 Notice to proceed was issued 2/15/2022, the HCRMA reimburse the contractor for the remaining design costs to not exceed 5% of the total cost savings. Payments

made will be based upon design milestones at 60%, 90% and 100% completion and acceptance.

VECP calculations for Contract Price of $281,723,797.95

VECP Gross Savings $38,010,382.63

Less est. Total Design Cost $1,943,648.45 (Schematics + Final Design)

Less Est. Owner’s Fees $545,178.43 (GEC, Environmental, T&R Costs)

VECP Net Savings $35,521,555.76

60% Contractor Saving: $21,312,933.45 Paid as Progress Payments

40% Owner Savings: $14,208,622.30 Reduced from original Project

8



[$14,037,105.71]



PROJECT PRODUCTION
 CAPTURING VECP PACKETS

2/8/23 VECP Team met, exchanged concepts, formats
3/8/23 VECP meeting formal report submittals by 3/31/23

 FORMAL SUBMITTALS, REVIEW OF DOCUMENTS
• RFIs 70
• SUBMITTALS 81

 TESTING [Soils/Concrete]
• Levees / embankment /
• Drill Shafts / Bents

 ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICES [SW3Ps]
 EMBANKMENT and UNDERGROUND WORK SH336 / SP115 Highline/ McColl
 UNDERGROUND WORK Storm Sewer / Irrigation structures [Sta. 792+00 to west end  ]

* FM494 12’ x 12’ BOX
* Outfall 1A

 DRILL SHAFTS Floodway Bridge / McColl
 COLUMNS McColl / Floodway
 BENT CAPS Highline / floodway





























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS    X AGENDA ITEM          2A 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED   04/13/23 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE  04/25/23 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING HELD ON 
MARCH 28, 2023.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Consideration and Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting held March 28, 2023.

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas 
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:  Yes   No     X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular
Meeting held March 28, 2023, as presented.

6. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Finance Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved        Disapproved       _   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved   Disapproved       X_   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   Approved    Disapproved       X   None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved  Disapproved    X_  None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved       Disapproved        X_  None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:  X    Approved   Disapproved        _  None 



1 
HCRMA Minutes – March 28, 2023 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF 

HIDALGO 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

The Hidalgo  County  Regional Mobility Authority  Board  of Directors  convened  for  a  Regular  Board Meeting  on 

Tuesday, March 28, 2023, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall, 2nd Floor City Commission Chambers, 118 S. Cage, Blvd, 

Pharr, TX 78577, with the following participating: 

 

     Board Members:     David Deanda, Chairman  
Forrest Runnels, Vice‐Chairman  
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer  
Juan Carlos Del Angel, Director 
Gabriel Kamel, Director 
Frank Pardo, Director     

           
                             Absent:                 Julio C. Cerda, P.E., Director  

 
                                  Staff:                 Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 

Ramon Navarro, Chief Construction Engineer 
Ascencion Alonzo, Chief Financial Officer 
Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer 
Maria Alaniz, Executive Assistant  

                       Richard Cantu, Cantu Law Company, Legal Counsel  
Colby Echols, Hilltop Securities, Financial Advisor  

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman Deanda led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mrs. Alaniz led the invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR A REGULAR MEETING 

 

Chairman Deanda called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

1. REPORTS 
 
A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document 

– HCRMA Staff 
Mr. Ramon Navarro reported on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental 
Clearance Document. No action taken. 

 
 



2 
HCRMA Minutes – March 28, 2023 

B. Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project – Ramon Navarro IV, HCRMA. 
              Mr. Ramon Navarro reported on the construction activity for 365 Tollway Project. No action taken. 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 
Motion by Frank Pardo with a second by Forrest Runnels, to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of 
Agenda Item 2C, January 2023 Financial Reports.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held February 28, 2023 and the Special Board Meeting 

held on March 14, 2023. 

Approved  the Minutes  for  the  Regular  Board Meeting  held  February  28,  2023  and  the  Special  Board 
Meeting held on March 14, 2023. 
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from February 8, 2023, to March 7, 2023. 

Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from February 8, 2023, to March 7, 2023. 

 

C. Approval of Financial Reports for December 2022 and January 2023. 
Approved the Financial Reports for December 2022. 
 

3. REGULAR AGENDA  
 
A. Resolution 2023‐16 – Consideration and Approval of an Agreement with AEP Texas Inc. for Participation in 

Relocation of electrical line at Glasscock Road for the 365 Tollway Project.  
Motion by Forrest Runnels, with a second by Juan Carlos Del Angel, to approve Resolution 2023‐16 – 
Consideration and Approval of an Agreement with AEP  Texas  Inc.  for Participation  in Relocation of 
electrical line at Glasscock Road for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $65,415.65. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

B. Resolution 2023‐18 ‐ Consideration and Approval of an Agreement with Magic Valley Electric Cooperative 
for Participation  in Relocation of electrical  line at  Jackson Road &  Juan Balli Road  for  the 365 Tollway 
Project. 
Motion by Juan Carlos Del Angel, with a second by Forrest Runnels, to approve Resolution 2023‐18 – 
Consideration and Approval of an Agreement with Magic Valley Electric Cooperative for Participation in 
Relocation of electrical line at Jackson Road & Juan Balli Road for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount 
of $24,065.60. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

C. Resolution 2023‐17 – Approval of Contract Amendment Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement 

with HDR Engineering  to  increase  the maximum payable amount  for Supplemental Number 3  to Work 

Authorization Number 3.  

Motion by Gabriel Kamel, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2023‐17 – Approval of 
Contract Amendment Number 8 to the Professional Service Agreement with HDR Engineering to increase 
the maximum payable amount for Supplemental Number 3 to Work Authorization Number 3 for a revised 
maximum payable amount of $3,235,404.31.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 

 

 



3 
HCRMA Minutes – March 28, 2023 

D. Resolution 2023‐19 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 20 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES,  Inc. for surveying services for the “X” Parcels claimed by Hidalgo County  Irrigation District 
Number 2 as part of the 365 Tollway Project.  
Motion by Forrest Runnels, with a second by Frank Pardo, to approve Resolution 2023‐19 –– Approval of 
Work Authorization Number 20 to the Professional Services Agreement with SAMES, Inc. for surveying 
services for the “X” Parcels claimed by Hidalgo County Irrigation District Number 2 as part of the 365 
Tollway Project in the amount of $56,245.00.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

E. Resolution 2023‐20 – Approval of Work Authorization Number 21 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES,  Inc.  for  surveying  services  for a corner clip  for utility’s  relocation along Thomas and  I Rd 
[Veterans Dr.] as part of the 365 Tollway Project.  
Motion by  Juan Carlos Del Angel, with a second by Gabriel Kamel, to approve Resolution 2023‐20   – 
Approval of Work Authorization Number 21 to the Professional Services Agreement with SAMES, Inc. for 
surveying services for a corner clip for utility’s relocation along Thomas and I Rd [Veterans Dr.] as part 
of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of 1,800.00.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

F. Resolution 2023‐21 – Approval of Contract Amendment 21 to the Professional Service Agreement with 
SAMES,  Inc.  to  increase  the maximum payable  amount  for Work Authorization Number 20  and Work 
Authorization Number 21. 
Motion by Gabriel Kamel, with a second by Ezequiel Reyna, to approve Resolution 2023‐21– Approval of 
Contract  Amendment  21  to  the  Professional  Service  Agreement  with  SAMES,  Inc.  to  increase  the 
maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 20 and Work Authorization Number 21 for a 
revised maximum amount of $351,811.50.   Motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
A. None. 

 

5. TABLED ITEMS 
 
A. None. 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH 

ATTORNEY), SECTION 551.072  (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  

 
A. Consultation with Attorney  on  personnel matters  related  annual  evaluation  of  the  Executive Director 

(551.074 T.G.C.) 
No action taken. 
 

B. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the City 
of Mission to provide Right of Way Acquisition Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.) 
No action taken. 
 

C. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Professional Service Agreements for Engineering, 
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 



4 
HCRMA Minutes – March 28, 2023 

D. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the voluntary acquisition of  real property  for 
various  parcels  for  the  365  Tollway  Project  and  International  Bridge  Trade  Corridor  Project  (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

E. Consultation with Attorney on  legal  issues pertaining  to  the acquisition,  including  the use of Eminent 
Domain, for property required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 
551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

F. Consultation with Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 
No action taken. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 

  There  being  no  other  business  to  come  before  the  Board  of  Directors,  motion  by  Forrest  Runnels,  with  a                     
second by Ezequiel Reyna, to adjourn the meeting at 5:55 p.m. 

 
 
 
  ________________________________________              
  S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
     Attest:   
 
 
 
  ________________________________________ 
  Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Item 2B 







Plains Capital 41

Make Check Payable to Date Work Performed Amount

Valero Fleet 03/16/23‐04/15/23 954.00$                                                                                   

Bracewell, LLP Thur March 31, 2023 3,113.00$                                                                                

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu. P.C.  March 2023 150.00$                                                                                   

City of Pharr March 2023 109,957.34$                                                                           

City of Pharr March 2023 205.00$                                                                                   

City of Pharr March 2023 6,765.00$                                                                                

City of Pharr 04/01/23‐04/30/23 1,256.17$                                                                                

City of Pharr 04/01/23‐04/30/23 5,497.71$                                                                                

Gateway Printing & Office Supply, Inc.  03/24/2023 63.72$                                                                                     

A‐Fast Delivery, LLC 03/13/23‐03/27/23 258.50$                                                                                   

Pathfinder Public Affairs March 2023 10,000.00$                                                                             

Pharr Economic Development Corporation April 2023 4,480.00$                                                                                

Computer Repair Center  03/29/2023 2,389.00$                                                                                

Juan Aguayo 3/21/23‐3/24/23 216.37$                                                                                   

Gabriel Molina 3/21/23‐3/24/23 216.37$                                                                                   

Alejandro Alanis 3/21/23‐3/24/23 216.37$                                                                                   

Ramon Navarro  03/20/23‐03/22/23 85.74$                                                                                     

Allterra 01/01/23‐12/31/2023 500.00$                                                                                   

Xerox Financial Services 04/01/23‐04/30/23 591.60$                                                                                   

Xerox Financial Services 04/01/23‐04/30/23 219.46$                                                                                   

Moody's Investors Service, Inc.  02/01/23‐01/31/24 16,000.00$                                                                             

Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP 03/13/23‐04/05/23 10,000.00$                                                                             

Pena Designs March 2023 200.00$                                                                                   

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts  2023 100.00$                                                                                   

Credit Card Services 03/04/23‐04/03/23 ‐$                                                                                          

Credit Card Services 03/04/23‐04/03/23 5,082.65$                                                                                

Credit Card Services 03/04/23‐04/03/23 330.66$                                                                                   

Credit Card Services 03/04/23‐04/03/23 ‐$                                                                                          

178,848.66$                                                                           

Wilmington Trust 44/365 Project Construction & Related Costs            2022 A

Pulice Construction, Inc.  03/16/23‐04/15/23 2,302,505.87$                                                                        

2,302,505.87$                                                                       

Wilmington Trust 44/365 Project Construction & Related Costs            2022 B

Bracewell, LLP Thur March 31, 2023 12,720.00$                                                                             

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP March 2023 2,600.00$                                                                                

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. March 2023 2,475.00$                                                                                

Blanton & Associates, Inc.  03/01/23‐03/31/23 1,000.26$                                                                                

Blanton & Associates, Inc.  02/01/23‐03/31/23 1,589.71$                                                                                

Texas Department of Transportation  03/31/2023 4,336.18$                                                                                

HDR Engineering, Inc.  2/26/23‐4/1/23 132,197.12$                                                                           

HDR Engineering, Inc.  11/27/22‐4/1/23 188,765.75$                                                                           

Atlas Technical Consultants, LLC 03/04/23‐03/31/23 669.90$                                                                                   

B2Z Engineering  03/01/23‐03/31/23 43,634.71$                                                                             

Raba Kistner, Inc.  Thru April 07, 2023 38,238.40$                                                                             

L&G Consulting Engineers 01/05/23‐03/23/23 2,426.22$                                                                                

L&G Consulting Engineers 1/30/23‐3/23/23 2,467.07$                                                                                

433,120.32$                                                                           

March. 8 - April. 7

April 2023 

Page 1



Make Check Payable to Date Work Performed Amount

HDR Engineering, Inc.  2/26/23‐4/1/23 4,179.73$                                                                                

Escobedo & Cardenas, LLP March 2023 300.00$                                                                                   

Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. March 2023 1,150.00$                                                                                

5,629.73$                                                                               

Sames Engineering & Surveying  03/31/2023 1,800.00$                                                                                

Magic Valley Electric Cooperative  03/28/2023 24,065.60$                                                                             
25,865.60$                                                                             

Sub Total ‐ General ‐41 (Operating) 178,848.66$                                                                                      

Sub Total ‐ Construction/Related Costs‐44 (New Bonds A) 2,302,505.87$                                                                                   

Sub Total ‐ Construction/Related Costs‐44 (New Bonds B) 433,120.32$                                                                                      

Sub Total ‐ Capital Projects‐45 (Disbursement) 5,629.73$                                                                                           

Sub Total ‐ VRF Series 2020A‐46 (VRF Series 2020A) 25,865.60$                                                                                        

Total  2,945,970.18$                                                                       

Approved:         Recommend Approval:  
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director

Approved:  Date: 4/25/2023
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer

Wilmington Trust 45/Capital Projects

Wilmington Trust 46/VRF Series 2020A

Page 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 2C 



































































Item 2D 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

   BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X           AGENDA ITEM                 2D    
PLANNING COMMITTEE   DATE SUBMITTED        4/18/2023 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE      4/25/2023 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORTS FOR THE PERIOD
ENDING MARCH 31, 2023._____________________________________              _________

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Consideration and approval of the quarterly investment reports for the period ending March 31,

2023.                                                                                                       ___________________

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Public Funds Investment Act Section 2256.

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Quarterly Investment Reports for the
period ending March 31, 2023 as presented.                       ________________________ .

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 

10. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   Approved         Disapproved    X    None 

11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved        X   None 

12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X    Approved          Disapproved           None 



Item 2D 





























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/17/23                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/25/23  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2023-14 – APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2022 FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report prepared  

by Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP for Fiscal Year 2022.  The report is required by Texas  
Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) Annual Reports to the  
Commission.             

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2023-14 – Approval of Fiscal Year  

2022 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report, as presented.    
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: April 17, 2023 

Re: Approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors 
Report 

Background 
Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) requires annual reports 
to the Texas Transportation Commission, which includes audited financial statements of the Authority’s 
books and records. 
 
 
Goal 
In order to comply with the Texas Administrative Code Requirement, the Board of Director must review 
and accept the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 
A copy of the Financial Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report prepared by Burton McCumber & 
Longoria is attached for your review and consideration.   
 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors could opt not to accept the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2023-14 – Approval of the Fiscal Year 2022 
Financial Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report is recommended. 
 
 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14 

 
 

APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS REPORT 

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 25th day of April, 2023, by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is required to report to the Texas Department of 

Transportation the annual financial statement and independent auditors report pursuant to the 
Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility 
Authority Reports and Audits), as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2022 fiscal year commenced on January 1, 2022 and ended 

on December 31, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board accepts the Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Statement and 

Independent Auditors Report prepared by Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board accepts the Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Statement and Independent 

Auditors Report, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 

 
***** 

 
 

 



Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 25th day of April, 2023, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
       
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT  
FOR  

FISCAL YEAR 2022  



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3B                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/17/23                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/25/23  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2023-15 – APPROVAL OF 2022 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE 

REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.     
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Annual Compliance Report to the Texas Department for the  

Fiscal Year 2022.            
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2023-15 – Approval of the 2022  

Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority as   
presented.                  

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: April 17, 2023 

Re: Approval of 2022 Compliance Report to the Texas Department of 
Transportation 

Background 
The compliance report is required under the Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, 
Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority Reports and Audits), as amended. 
 
Goal 
In order to comply with the Texas Administrative Code Requirement, the Board of Director must review 
and accept the Compliance Report. 
 
A copy of the 2022 Compliance Report is attached for your review and consideration.   
 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors could opt not to accept the Compliance Report. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2023-15 – Approval of 2022 Compliance 
Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority is recommended. 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2023-15 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2022 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 25th day of April, 2023, by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is required to submit to the Texas Department of 

Transportation the annual compliance report pursuant to the Texas Administrative Code, Title 
43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority Reports and Audits), as 
amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2022 fiscal year commences on January 1, 2022 and ended 

on December 31, 2022; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the annual compliance report for Fiscal Year 

2021;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board approves the annual compliance report for Fiscal Year 2022, hereto 

attached as Exhibit A. 
 

Section 3. The Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director to submit the 2022 
annual compliance report to the Texas Department of Transportation. 

 
***** 

 
 
 



 
Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 25th day of April, 2023, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
       
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  

FISCAL YEAR 2022 COMPLIANCE REPORT 



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 
Compliance Report 

Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G 

§26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission 

Compliance Rule Compliance Statement Certification 
Rule §26.61 Written Reports:   
The annual operating and capital budgets 
adopted by the RMA year.   

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA adopted the FY 2023 
Operating & Capital Budget on 
December 13, 2022. 

Any annual financial information and notices 
of material events required to be disclosed 
under Rule 15c2-12 of the SEC.  

Not applicable.  

To the extent not disclosed in another 
report required in this compliance report, a 
statement of any surplus revenue held by 
the RMA and a summary of how it intends 
to use the surplus revenue.  

Not applicable. HCRMA does not 
have surplus revenue at this 
time. 

 

An independent auditor's review of the 
reports of investment transactions prepared 
under Government Code, §2256.023.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2022 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 25, 2023, which 
included a review of investment 
transactions. 

Rule §26.62 Annual Audit:   
The RMA shall maintain its books and 
records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United 
States and shall have an annual financial and 
compliance audit of such books and records.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2022 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on April 25, 2023. 

The annual audit shall be submitted to each 
county or city that is a part of the RMA 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal 
year, and conducted by an independent 
certified public accountant. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA has made the financial 
statement and independent 
auditors report available to all 
interested parties. 

All work papers and reports shall be 
retained for a minimum of four years from 
the date of the audit. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA’s record retention policy 
in compliance with this 
requirement. 

Rule §26.63 Other Reports to Counties and 
Cities: 

  

Provide other reports and information 
regarding its activities promptly when 
requested by the counties or cities. 

HCRMA is in compliance. All reports and activities are 
posted on the HCRMA web site 
at www.hcrma.net. 

Rule §26.64 Operating Records:   
The Department will have access to all 
operating and financial records of the RMA. 
The executive director will provide 
notification if access is desired by the 
department. 

HCRMA is in compliance.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page 
Intentionally 
Left  Blank 



Item 3C



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

 
 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3C                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           04/20/23                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        04/25/23  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2023-22 – AWARD OF 365 TOLLWAY TOLL COLLECTION 

SYSTEM INSTALLATION, INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT    
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and award of contract for the 365 Tollway Toll Collection System Installation,  

Integration and Maintenance Contract with SICE.        
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2023-22 – Approval of the Award of  

the 365 Tollway Toll Collection Installation, Integration and Maintenance Contract to SICE. 
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: April 20, 2023 

Re: Resolution 2023-22 – Approval of the 365 Tollway Toll Collection System 
Installation, Integration and Maintenance Contract with SICE  

Background 
On March 14, 2023, the Board of Directors authorized staff to negotiate with SICE for the 365 
Tollway Toll Collection Installation, Integration and Maintenance Contract. The Authority had 
solicited Request for Proposals for this service with five (5) qualified responses received.   
 
Goal 
The 365 Tollway Project is currently under construction and a toll collection system will be 
required to be installed and integrated prior to opening of the roadway. 
 
Staff has completed negotiations with SICE for a contract for the toll collection system 
installation, integration and maintenance.  
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this Office, Approval of Resolution 2023-22 – Approval of the 365 Tollway 
Toll Collection Installation, Integration and Maintenance Contract with SICE is recommended. 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  

 



 

#5585020.2 

 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2023 - 22 

 
AWARD OF 365 TOLLWAY TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM 

INSTALLATION, INTEGRATION AND MAINTENANCE 
CONTRACT 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 25th day of April, 2023 by the Board of Directors of 
the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), 
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); 
and 

 
 WHEREAS, on November 17, 2005, the Texas Transportation Commission (the 

“Commission”) created the Authority pursuant to (i) the Act; (ii) Title 43, Texas 
Administrative Code; (iii) a petition of the Hidalgo County Commissioners Court (the 
“County”); and (iv) findings by the Commission that the creation of the Authority would 
result in certain direct benefits to the State of Texas (the “State”), local governments, and 
the traveling public and would improve the State’s transportation system; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Act allows the Authority to construct transportation projects 

within the County, including the 365 Tollway Project (the “Project”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority issued a competitive, best value procurement, RFP 

2022-02: Toll Collection System Installation, Integration, and Maintenance for the 
Project (the “RFP”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority received five qualified responses to the RFP;  
 
WHEREAS, on March 14, 2023, the evaluation committee recommended SICE as 

the best value respondent and the Board authorized the Authority to enter into 
negotiations with SICE Inc.; and 

 
WHEREAS, a contract has been negotiated with SICE Inc. for Toll Collection 

System Installation, Integration, and Maintenance for the Project (the “Contract”);  
  
  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 



 

#5585020.2 

 

 
Section 2. The Board hereby awards the 365 Tollway Toll Collection System 
Installation, Integration and Maintenance Contract to SICE Inc. and approves the 
Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A.  
 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Contract. 
 
 
 

***** 



 

#5585020.2 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING on the 25th day of April, 2023, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 

 

 

 

 

              
      S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 

 

 

              
      Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Secretary/Treasurer 
 



 

#5585020.2 

 

Exhibit A 
TSI Contract 



Revisions - 4/20/23 

 
DM-#8358912.2 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

********************** 

AGREEMENT 

FOR TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION, INTEGRATION, AND MAINTENANCE 

 

THIS TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM INSTALLATION, INTEGRATION, AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (the 
“Agreement”) is made as of this _______ day of _________            , 20____ (the “Effective Date”), by and 
between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, 
operating within Hidalgo County, Texas (“Authority” or “HCRMA”), and SICE Inc. (“Toll System Integrator” 
or “TSI”) with offices located at 3610  Willowbend Blvd., Houston, Texas 77054. 

WHEREAS, the Authority is responsible for the development, design, construction and operation of the 
Authority toll road system; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority issued a Request for Proposals (the “RFP”) dated _____________________, 
2022, which contains requirements for the design, procurement, installation, testing, and maintenance of 
a Toll Collection System (as defined below) on the Authority Lanes (collectively, the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, responses were received and evaluated based on the criteria set forth in the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority Board of Directors has determined that the proposal submitted by the TSI and 
dated                                           , 20        (the “Proposal”) best satisfies the objectives set forth in the RFP and 
offers the best value to the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the TSI understands and acknowledges that the Project consists of a complete Toll Collection 
System for the Authority toll system (collectively the “Toll Collection System”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to purchase from the TSI and the TSI desires to design, procure, test, 
install, implement, and maintain the Toll Collection System for the Authority toll system; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein contained, and 
other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
Authority and the TSI hereby agree as follows: 

 

  



HCRMA Page 2 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

ARTICLE 1. GENERAL 

1.01 AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE 

The TSI shall design, sell to the Authority, install, integrate, implement, test, and maintain, and the 
Authority shall purchase from the TSI, the Toll Collection System pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 

1.02 TERM OF AGREEMENT 

Unless otherwise terminated pursuant to Section 5.08, the initial term of this Agreement shall commence 
on the Effective Date hereof, ending on the date occurring five years from the date “GO-LIVE” is issued, 
as described in the RFP. The Authority shall have two 2-year options to renew, followed by one 1-year 
option to renew, upon the same terms and conditions stated in the Agreement Documents. Which options 
shall be exercisable are at the sole discretion of the Authority. Any adjustments to the prices listed in 
Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form for the renewal period shall be adjusted pursuant to Section 3.06. 
Certain matters described in the Agreement Documents, including warranties and indemnifications by the 
TSI, shall exist beyond the Term of this Agreement. 

1.03 AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

This Agreement includes the documents attached to the RFP, including all exhibits and schedules, and all 
amendments (including Change Orders) added, all of which are incorporated herein by reference and are 
made a part hereof (together such documents are sometimes referred to herein as the “Agreement 
Documents”). For the avoidance of doubt, the term “Agreement” as used in this Toll System Installation, 
Integration and Maintenance Agreement document shall include: 

• Volume 01 - Introduction 
• Volume 02 - Project Description 
• Volume 03 - General Provisions 
• Volume 04 - Infrastructure 
• Volume 05 - System Requirements 
• Volume 06 - System Implementation Testing 
• Volume 07 - Operations and Maintenance 
• Volume 08 - Deliverables 
• Volume 09 - Performance Requirements 
• Volume 10 - Scoring Methodology 
• Volume 11A - Pricing Sheet 
• Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form 
• Volume 12 - Technical Response Guide 
• Volume 13 - Payment Bond 
• Volume 14 - Performance Bond 
• Volume 15 – Agreement (this document) 
• Volume 16 - Glossary 
• And any and all exhibits and schedules, and all amendments added, including any licenses 
• Betterments or Clarifications based on the Proposal and the negotiation 



HCRMA Page 3 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

1.04 PRIORITY 

In the event of a conflict, the order of prevailing precedence (a)-highest order to (d)-lowest order of 
precedence) shall be as follows: 

(a) Any amendments to the Agreement Documents, which amendments are attached as Volumes to 
the Agreement. 

(b) The Agreement Documents. 

(c) TSI’s Detailed Design Documents as approved by the Authority. 

(d) The TSI’s Proposal, to the extent it meets or exceeds the requirements of the Agreement 
Documents. In other words, if the Proposal can reasonably be interpreted as providing higher 
quality materials or services than those required by the Agreement Documents or otherwise 
contains offers, statements, or terms more advantageous to the Authority, TSI’s obligations 
under the Agreement Documents shall include compliance with all such statements, offers and 
terms contained in the Proposal. 

Notwithstanding the order of precedence set forth above, in the event of a conflict within documents 
of the same priority (for instance, between Volume 04 and Volume 05), the Authority shall have the 
right, in its sole discretion, to determine which provision applies, unless a provision expressly states 
that it shall control. 

 
1.05 AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS 

Any changes and/or additions made to the Agreement Documents as a result of negotiations with the 
Authority shall be included as part of this Agreement and attached hereto as a Volume. No such changes 
shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both parties. 

 

ARTICLE 2. TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM IMPLEMENTATION 

2.01 COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 

The TSI shall proceed with Phase 1 Implementation, which consists generally of the products and services 
required for integration of the Toll Collection System as further described in Volume 02 - Project 
Description, upon the issuance of Notice to Proceed (“NTP”) by the Authority.  TSI shall furnish all labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, software, documentation, transportation, supplies, and all else necessary 
and incidental thereto to complete the Work.  

 

 

 



HCRMA Page 4 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

2.02 INVOICING AND PAYMENT 

The TSI has submitted a price proposal using Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form of the RFP. The 
following process shall apply to invoicing and payment: 

(a) Milestone Payments 

(1) Authority's payment of the Milestone Payments shall be made based upon the 
Milestone Payment structure set forth in Volume 02 - Project Description, 
Section 02-4 hereto. Within 60 days after the Authority's approval of a Milestone 
Price Draw Request, the Authority shall pay TSI the amount approved for 
payment in respect of such request. 

(b) Delivery of Milestone Draw Request 

(1) TSI may submit a Milestone Draw Request for Milestone Payments not more 
frequently than monthly. To request a Milestone Payment, TSI shall deliver to 
the Authority one hard original copy and one electronic copy of a Milestone 
Draw Request meeting all requirements specified herein except as otherwise 
approved in writing by the Authority. Each Milestone Draw Request shall be 
executed by a designated and authorized representative of TSI appointed by TSI 
to have such authority in accordance with this Agreement. TSI acknowledges 
that the Authority may obtain funding for portions of Phase 1 Implementation 
from the federal government, local agencies and other third parties, and TSI 
agrees to segregate Milestone Draw Requests for Phase 1 Implementation in a 
format reasonably requested by the Authority and with detail and information 
as reasonably requested by the Authority. A separate Milestone Draw Request 
shall be required for each Milestone. Each Milestone Draw Request shall be 
organized to account for applicable reimbursement requirements, including an 
allocation for any reimbursements with respect to applicable insurance and/or 
bonds, and to facilitate the reimbursement process. 

(c) Contents of Milestone Draw Request 

(1) Each Milestone Draw Request shall contain the following items: 

a) Milestone Draw Request cover sheet; 

b) Description of the status of all completed Milestones, as of the date of 
the Milestone Draw Request; 

c) Payments which are then due in accordance with the Milestone Payment 
structure, as of the date of the Milestone Draw Request; 

d) A monthly progress report(s) for the applicable Milestone as of the date 
of the Milestone Draw Request; 

e) Certification by the TSI that all Qualifying Events which are the subject 
of the Milestone Draw Request fully comply with the requirements of 



HCRMA Page 5 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

the Agreement Documents subject to any exceptions identified in the 
certification; 

f) A report of the certified pay roles of the labor personnel hours for the 
applicable Milestone since the prior Milestone Draw Request;  

g) Milestone Draw Request data sheet(s) and supporting documents, as 
required by the Authority to support and substantiate the amount 
requested, including prior written approval of the Authority for 
Milestone Deliverables for each Milestone Payment included in the 
Milestone Draw Request, if any; 

h) DBE utilization report, if any, in a format reasonably satisfactory to the 
Authority for the applicable Milestone; 

i) An approved and updated Project Schedule for the applicable milestone; 
and 

j) Such other items as the Authority reasonably requests. 

(2) In addition, no Milestone Draw Request shall be considered complete unless it:  

a) describes in detail the status of completion as it relates to the Project 
Schedule for the applicable Milestone; 

b) sets forth in detail the related payments which are then due in 
accordance with the Project Schedule for the applicable Milestone, as of 
the end of most recent prior Milestone Draw Request, including detailed 
itemization for any payments with respect to applicable insurance 
and/or bonds; 

c) in the case of amounts to be paid on a unit price basis, includes invoices, 
receipts or other evidence establishing the number of units delivered; 

d) in the case of amounts invoiced on a time and materials basis, includes 
all supporting documentation described in the Agreement Documents; 
and 

e) sets forth in detail the amounts paid to Sub-Contractors (including 
suppliers and sub-sub-Contractors) from the payments made by the 
Authority to the TSI with respect to the most recent prior Milestone 
Draw Request, including executed unconditional waivers of claims with 
respect to all amounts so paid. 

(d) Milestone Draw Request Cover Sheet Contents 

(1) The Milestone Draw Request cover sheet shall include the following:  

a) Milestone number and title; 



HCRMA Page 6 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

b) Request number (numbered consecutively starting with "1"); 

c) Total amount earned to date for the applicable Milestone, as well as for 
the overall Project; and 

d) Authorized signature, title of signer, and date of signature. 

(e) Partial Payments. 

(1) In the event all Qualifying Events for a particular Milestone are not achieved by 
the applicable Guaranteed Date, the TSI may submit an invoice for payment to 
the Authority, showing the approximate quantities of Work done and all 
permanent materials and equipment furnished but not incorporated in the 
Work, up to the date of such certificate, and the value of such materials and 
equipment as security for the fulfillment of this Agreement by the TSI until the 
completion of the particular Milestone. At the sole discretion of the Authority, 
the Authority may pay such invoice within 60 days to the TSI while carrying on 
the Work.  

(2) In the event the Authority, in good faith, disputes any invoiced amount, the 
Authority shall have the right to withhold or deduct payment of such disputed 
amount without incurring any interest; provided that the Authority has provided 
TSI with written notice of the amount in dispute and the reason for such 
withholding. No more than 15 days after TSI’s receipt of such written notice of 
the amount and reason for the withholding or deducting of payment, the parties 
shall work together in good faith to settle the invoice dispute in accordance with 
this Agreement. 

(f) Releases. 

(1) Appropriate final release forms and other required documentation shall be 
completed by the TSI and approved by the Authority. The acceptance by the TSI 
of payment of the final Milestone Payment (less any amounts of liquidated 
damages that may be imposed under this Agreement) shall operate as and be a 
release to the Authority and its agents from all Claims of or liability to the TSI for 
anything done or furnished or omitted to be done or furnished for or relating to 
Phase 1 Implementation, or any act or neglect of the Authority to the TSI or any 
Corporation or person arising from Phase 1 Implementation. Specifically, before 
final payment, the following shall be satisfied:  (i) TSI and any subcontractors 
shall file affidavits certifying the amounts due and identity of any and all 
workmen owed wages due on account of Project work; and (ii) TSI shall execute 
and deliver the final invoice, including a full release of the Authority and its 
agents from any Claims or actions on this Agreement and certification by TSI that 
there are no outstanding liens or claims for work performed or materials 
supplied under this Agreement. 

(2) The Authority shall not be joined as a party to any lawsuit between TSI and any 
subcontractor, supplier or vendor, by reason of withholding or deducting funds 
under subsection (e) above and any party suing the Authority by reason of 



HCRMA Page 7 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

holding said funds and any party suing the Authority in contravention of this 
provision shall be responsible and liable for attorneys’ fees and legal costs 
incurred by the Authority in defending said claim.   The Authority shall have the 
right to withhold from monies due to TSI an amount sufficient to completely the 
Authority against liability resulting from any claim against TSI. 

(g) Phase 1 Retainage.  

(1) The Authority shall retain 10% of all Phase 1 payments to the TSI as the 
“retainage”. The Authority shall withhold retainage for 30 days after final 
completion and acceptance of the Work.  

(2) If TSI holds retainage on subcontractor work, TSI shall pay such retainage on 
subcontractor work within 10 calendar days after satisfaction completion of the 
subcontractor’s work. 

(3) The Authority shall have the right to retain, out of monies due, any amounts 
claimed by the Authority to be due to it from TSI, which retainage shall be in 
addition to any retainage set forth elsewhere.  

(4) No retainage shall apply during Phase 2 maintenance.  

 

2.03 PHASE 1 IMPLEMENTATION LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

(a) It is important that the Toll Collection System be delivered, installed, and placed into operation 
on the Project within the Guaranteed Date set forth for the “Go-Live (Open to Traffic/Tolling)” 
Milestone, as shown in Volume 02 - Project Description, Section 02-4. 

(b) Failure to meet the Guaranteed Date for the “Go-Live (Open to Traffic/Tolling” Milestone shall 
result in liquidated damages being assessed by the Authority at a rate of $16,500 per calendar 
day, unless specific time extensions (i) have been requested in writing by the TSI and approved 
in writing by Authority, at its sole discretion,  (ii) have been initiated in writing by the Authority; 
or (iii) are the result of a contractor delay in the Project as acknowledged in writing by the 
Authority. Authority reserves the right to deduct the amount of liquidated damages from any 
funds due the TSI. If retained funds or other funds due the TSI are not sufficient to cover the 
liquidated damages, the TSI or Surety shall promptly pay the amount due. The TSI’s maximum 
liability under this Section 2.03 (b) over the term of this Agreement shall be capped at 25% of the 
total amount set forth in Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form, Schedules A, B, and C.  

(c) The assessment to the TSI of liquidated damages shall represent the Authority’s sole remedy and 
TSI’s sole liability for consequences to the Authority  derived from the TSI’s failure to meet the 
Guaranteed Date for the “Go-Live (Open to Traffic/Tolling Milestone); however nothing 
contained in this section shall be construed as limiting the rights of Authority to additionally 
recover from the TSI any or all payments which become due to Authority for other reasons such 
as improper performance, failure to perform or breach of contract in any other respect of the 
entire Project, including, but not limited to, defective workmanship, equipment or materials. The 



HCRMA Page 8 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

liquidated damages payable to the Authority under this Section 2.03 shall be included in the 
calculation of determining the amount of damages applicable against the Phase 1 Cap (as defined 
in Section 2.04(a) below). 

 

2.04 PHASE 1 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

(a) Phase 1 Cap 

(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, TSI’s total liability to the 
Authority and all liabilities arising out of or related to Phase 1 Implementation provided 
for in this Agreement and regardless of the legal theory, including breach of contract, 
negligence, strict liability, or statutory liability, (i) shall not, in the aggregate, exceed the 
total amount set forth in Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form, Schedules A, B, and C 
multiplied by 1.5 (the “Phase 1 Cap”); provided, however that TSI shall not be protected 
by any liability cap, including the Phase 1 Cap, in the next  instances:   

a) Any willful misconduct, fraud or deliberate act of wrongdoing or reckless 
disregard of applicable law by the TSI; 

b) Death or personal injury of any person or property damage or destruction claims 
arising as a result of any negligence or tortious conduct by TSI; 

c) Any abandonment of the performance of the Agreement by the TSI (other than 
as a consequence of any suspension or termination under this Agreement); 

d) Losses or liabilities to the extent (a) covered by the proceeds of insurance 
required to be obtained and maintained by the TSI pursuant to this Agreement, 
or (b) such losses or liabilities that would have been covered by proceeds of 
insurance but for a failure by the TSI to maintain the insurance policies required 
to be obtained and maintained by the TSI pursuant to this agreement (up to the 
amount of the required insurance and deductibles thereon); and/or 

e) Any fines or penalties payable by HCRMA under any statute, regulation or other 
applicable law resulting from a breach or violation of same by the TSI. 

(b) This Section 2.04 shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason. 

(c) TSI shall not be liable for exemplary damages, punitive damages, incidental damages, lost profits, 
 indirect damages, and consequential damages during Phase 1. 

 

ARTICLE 3. TOLL COLLECTION SYSTEM MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

3.01 COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 

The TSI shall proceed with Phase 2 Maintenance, which consists generally of the products and services 
required for maintenance of the Toll Collection System as further described in Volume 02 – Project 
Description, upon the issuance of “GO-LIVE” by the Authority. Commencement of Phase 2 Maintenance 



HCRMA Page 9 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

as described herein entails conveyance of ownership to the Authority of the products and equipment 
furnished by TSI in Phase 1 Implementation, along with the transfer of the risk associated therewith and 
any applicable risk insurance, which shall be then borne by Authority. 

3.02 FEES AND CHARGES 

The Authority shall pay a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) for Phase 2 Maintenance to be performed as 
set forth in the Maintenance Prices (the form of which is provided as Volume 11B – Price Proposal Form 
to the RFP). The Monthly Fee shall not be increased or decreased during the five (5) year term following 
issuance of “GO-LIVE” except for adjustment as a result of damages assessed or Change Orders. 

3.03 PAYMENT TERMS 

(a) Within 10 days of the last day of each month, TSI shall deliver to the Authority one copy of a 
Maintenance Price Draw Request for the Monthly Fee meeting all requirements specified herein 
except as otherwise approved in writing by the Authority. Each Maintenance Price Draw Request 
shall be executed by a designated and authorized representative of TSI appointed by TSI to have 
such authority in accordance with this Agreement. TSI acknowledges that the Authority may 
obtain funding for portions of Phase 2 Maintenance from the federal government, local agencies 
and other third parties, and TSI agrees to segregate Maintenance Price Draw Requests for all 
such Work in a format reasonably requested by the Authority and with detail and information as 
reasonably requested by the Authority. 

(b) Each Maintenance Price Draw Request must contain the following items: 

(1) Maintenance Price Draw Request cover sheet; 

(2) Monthly Maintenance Report; 

(3) Certifications in form acceptable to the Authority that Phase 2 Maintenance 
conforms to the Agreement Documents; 

(4) A report of the certified pay roles of the labor personnel hours for the applicable 
Milestone since the prior Milestone Draw Request; 

(5) Maintenance Price Draw Request data sheet(s), documents and summary that 
support and substantiate the Performance Measures have been met, including 
prior written approval of the Authority confirming the Performance Measures 
have been met; and 

(6) Submitted and approved changes to the Phase 2 Maintenance if applicable. 

(c) Within 15 business days after the Authority’s receipt of a complete Maintenance Price Draw 
Request, the Authority will review the Maintenance Price Draw Request, as applicable, and all 
attachments and certificates thereto for conformity with the requirements of the Agreement 
Documents and shall notify TSI of the amount approved for payment and the reason for 
disapproval of any remaining invoiced amounts or of any other information set forth in the 
Maintenance Price Draw Request. Within 60 days after the Authority board’s approval of a 



HCRMA Page 10 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

Maintenance Price Draw Request, the Authority shall pay TSI the amount approved for payment 
in respect of such request. 

(d) In the event the Authority, in good faith, disputes any invoiced amount, the Authority shall have 
the right to withhold or deduct payment of such disputed amount without incurring any interest 
provided that the Authority has provided the TSI with written notice of the amount in dispute 
and the reason, therefore. No greater than 30 days after TSI’s receipt of written notice of the 
amount and reason for withholding or deducting payment, the parties will work together in good 
faith to settle the invoice dispute. If the parties cannot agree on such dispute, such dispute will 
be handled in accordance with Section 5.11. 

(e) In the event the performance of Phase 2 Maintenance is not in conformity with the requirements 
specified in the Agreement Documents, the Monthly Fee due for the subsequent month in which 
the event occurred will be withheld without incurring any interest charges until such time as the 
TSI corrects or otherwise rectifies the nonconformity. The Authority reserves the right to 
withhold all or a portion of such Monthly Fee, depending on the severity of the problem. The 
Authority shall give notice and a full description of the problem to the TSI prior to withholding 
the payment. If the TSI does not agree with the Authority’s decision to withhold such payments, 
such dispute will be handled in accordance with Section 5.11. 

3.04 PHASE 2 MAINTENANCE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 3.04, if any Performance Measure or 
Required Service Level described in Volume 09, Performance Requirements fails to be met, then 
the TSI shall be liable to the Authority for liquidated damages for the Authority’s economic loss 
as determined in same document. Phase 2 liquidated damages shall not, in the aggregate, exceed 
the then average Monthly Fee multiplied by 60 (or in a renewal period, the average Monthly Fee 
from the prior 12 months multiplied by 24) (the “Phase 2 Cap”). 

(b) The parties acknowledge and agree that damages for such negligence on the part of the TSI will 
be difficult to determine and that the amounts specified in Volume 09 Performance 
Requirements have been agreed to by the parties as a reasonable estimate of the Authority’s 
economic loss. The liquidated damages payable to the Authority under this Section 3.04 shall not 
be included in the calculation of determining the amount of damages applicable against the 
Phase 2 Cap (as defined in Section 3.05(a) below).  

(c) Liquidated damages described in this Section 3.04 shall not apply to TSI where Volume 9, 
Performance Requirements are met.  

3.05 PHASE 2 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

(a) Phase 2 Cap 

(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement,  TSI’s total liability to the 
Authority and all liabilities arising out of or related to Phase 2 Maintenance 
provided for in this Agreement and regardless of the legal theory, including 
breach of contract, negligence, strict liability, or statutory liability, (i) shall not, 



HCRMA Page 11 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

in the aggregate, exceed the then average Monthly Fee multiplied by 60 (or in a 
renewal period, the average Monthly Fee from the prior 12 months multiplied 
by 24) (the “Phase 2 Cap”); provided, however that TSI shall not be protected by 
any liability cap, including the Phase 2 Cap, for the same instances as stated in 
Section 2.04 of this Agreement.   

(b) This Section 3.05 shall survive termination of this Agreement for any reason.  

(c) Loss of Revenue. In case the performance of the services is not in conformance with Volume 9, 
Performance Requirements and HCRMA incurs a loss of revenue due to any action or inaction of 
the TSI (or any individual entity working on TSI’s behalf), TSI shall be obligated to make payment 
to HCRMA of lost revenue. TSI shall not be liable for Loss of Revenue damages beyond the Phase 
2 Cap. 

(d) TSI shall not be liable for exemplary damages, punitive damages, incidental damages, indirect 
damages, and consequential damages during Phase 2. For avoidance of doubt, Loss of Revenue 
as described in section 3.05 (c) shall not be considered a consequential damage. 

 

3.06 RENEWAL PERIOD PRICE ADJUSTMENTS 

(a)  The prices to be used for establishing pricing for any proposed renewal period described in 
Section 1.02 shall be based upon the pricing provided in Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form.  Six 
months prior to issuance of a renewal period, Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form shall be adjusted 
to account for increases or decreases in the costs of labor and materials from the costs as of the 
Renewal Effective Date. These adjustments will be made as specified in this Section 3.06, 
regardless of the actual variations in cost of labor and materials for such items and shall be the 
TSI’s sole and exclusive remedy for cost variations. TSI agrees that the economic price 
adjustments pursuant to this Section 3.06 shall be the sole basis for adjusting Volume 11B - Price 
Proposal Form for the renewal period to reflect inflation and/or market conditions. The TSI 
warrants that the prices contained in its Proposal do not include any contingency to cover 
anticipated increased costs of performance due to price inflation following the Effective Date. 

(1) Economic price adjustments shall be based on the following indices: 

a) Labor amounts shall be adjusted in accordance with the Employment 
Cost Index (ECI) total compensation private industry all workers, Series 
ID CIU2010000000000I, (not seasonally adjusted) as published by the 
U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

b) Material amounts shall be adjusted in accordance with an index, which 
shall be a composite of the Electrical Machinery and Equipment Index 
(WPU 117) and the Metals and Metal Products Index (WPU 10), as 
published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. The relative weights of 
those two indices in determining the composite index shall be calculated 
by the TSI as a result of the average distribution of material prices in the 
above two index categories, subject to approval by the Authority. 



HCRMA Page 12 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(2) Prior to the renewal period, the economic price adjustment shall be applied to 
Volume 11B Price Proposal Form. TSI shall deliver to the Authority a statement 
showing the adjustment calculations, using a format approved by the Authority. 
The adjustment shall be calculated by individually multiplying the original 
Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form prices by a fraction, the numerator of which 
shall be the most recently published index as of the adjustment date and the 
denominator of which shall be the index for the month of the Effective Date.  

(3) In the event that any of the indices referenced in this Section 3.06 ceases to be 
published, or the method of calculating the index is materially altered, the 
Authority shall select another index to be used in place of the discontinued or 
altered index, or a method of adjusting the altered index. Any new index shall be 
comparable to the index which it replaces. Foreign (non-U.S.) indices and/or 
corrections. Foreign (non-US) indices and/or corrections for trading of currency 
shall not be eligible for use. 

 
ARTICLE 4. CHANGE ORDERS AND CHANGE DIRECTIVES  

4.01 AGREEMENT CHANGES 

(a) A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Authority and the TSI.  

(b) Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Agreement 
Documents, and the TSI shall proceed promptly therewith, unless otherwise provided in the 
Change Order. 

(c) If unit prices are stated in the Agreement Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if 
quantities originally contemplated are so changed in a proposed Change Order that application 
of such unit prices to quantities of work will cause substantial inequity to the Authority or TSI, 
the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

4.02 CHANGE ORDERS 

(a) A Change Order is a written instrument signed by the Authority and the TSI stating their 
agreement upon the following (or combination thereof):  

(1) a change in Work, including but not limited to the Scope of Work; 

(2) the amount of adjustment in Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form, if any; 

(3) the extent of the adjustment in Guaranteed Date(s), if any; and/or 

(4) to revise other terms and conditions of the Agreement Documents. 

(b) Methods used in determining adjustments to Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form may include 
those methods described under Change Directives. 



HCRMA Page 13 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(c) Proposed Change Order Letter 

The Authority may at any time issue a Proposed Change Order letter (each, a "PCO Letter") to the 
TSI in the event of any desired change in the Work. The PCO Letter will state that it is issued 
under this Article 4 and will describe the Work in question and will state the basis for a proposed 
adjustment, if any, in the Tables. The Authority and the TSI will mutually determine and agree on 
the impact on the Guaranteed Date(s), if any, as a result of the change in the Work under the PCO 
Letter. The TSI shall proceed immediately as directed in the PCO Letter, pending the execution of 
a formal Change Order. 

A PCO Letter signed by the TSI indicates the agreement of the TSI therewith, including adjustment 
in the Tables and Guaranteed Date(s) or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall 
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order. 

ARTICLE 5. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

5.01 TSI REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

(a) TSI represents and warrants that it is a [  ] corporation in good standing and eligible to do 
business in the State of Texas with the full corporate authority to execute this Agreement by the 
person signing below.  TSI further warrants that (i) the Work performed shall meet or exceed the 
defined levels of performance and reliability provided in the Agreement Documents; (ii) all 
Deliverables described in Volume 8 and the Agreement Documents shall be materially accurate 
and complete; (iii) TSI has the resources and expertise to successfully accomplish and provide 
the warranty and maintenance obligations provided for in Volume 7; (iv) TSI will use only new 
materials and equipment which are free of any known defect for performing the Work; and (v) 
TSI shall give Authority the benefit of any third party equipment warranty or guaranty for 
equipment provided under this Agreement. Further, if TSI or its subcontractor takes any action 
that violates any manufacturer’s warranty or guaranty for equipment provided under this 
Agreement, TSI will at its option, either (1) provide replacement equipment at no cost to the 
Authority; or (2) reimburse the Authority for related actual failure and/or replacement costs of 
the equipment.  

(b) TSI warrants that the Work performed under this Agreement shall meet or exceed the defined 
levels of performance and reliability provided in the Agreement Documents, shall be performed 
in a diligent, good, and workmanlike manner, with that degree of skill and judgment normally 
exercised by recognized professional firms performing services of a similar nature, and shall be 
free of defects. Further, TSI’s professional services under this Agreement shall be performed with 
that degree of skill and judgment normally exercised by recognized professional firms performing 
services of a similar nature. All Work performed on the Project shall conform with the 
requirements of the Agreement Documents, including Project schedules. For any breach by TSI 
of this warranty for which Authority has notice and gives notice to TSI, TSI shall promptly re-
perform any Work that is not in compliance with this warranty without delay and at TSI’s sole 
expense. 

(c) If TSI’s performance of Work on the Project or other actions of TSI cause damage to equipment, 
software, and/or any other part or portion of the Project, regardless of whether the performance 
of the Work is in accordance with the warranty provided by TSI, TSI shall be liable, at TSI’s sole 



HCRMA Page 14 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

expense, for either repair or replacement of the equipment, software, and/or other part or 
portion of the Project that was damaged by the performance of Work on Phase 2 Maintenance 
or other actions. 

(d) If the performance of Work performed on the Project or other actions is the cause of bodily 
injury, death, or damage to property owned by third parties, regardless of whether the 
performance of the Work is in accordance with the warranty provided by TSI, TSI shall be liable, 
at TSI’s sole expense, and responsible for all Claims (as defined in Section 5.24 of this Agreement) 
related to such injuries, deaths, and/or damage (excluding the Authority’s economic damages, 
except for lost profits) and TSI shall indemnify and hold harmless the Authority from and against 
such Claims, provided that the Authority complies with the provisions of Section 5.25(c) of this 
Agreement. 

(e) In the event TSI fails within 5 days to commence and within 30 days to repair, replace, reprogram, 
or re-perform, its obligations as provided herein with respect to any portion of the Authority’s 
property that is subject to the Work, or fails to remedy and repair any and all damage as required 
herein with respect to the same, the Authority shall have the right to engage the services of 
another person or entity to perform such services, repair and/or remedial work, and TSI shall 
promptly reimburse the Authority for all costs and expenses incurred by the Authority, consistent 
with the requirements of its Procurement Policy, in connection with such other person or entity 
performing such repair and/or remedial work. If the Authority is not promptly reimbursed, the 
Authority shall have the right to set off any such amounts against any payments due from the 
Authority to TSI.  

(f) If the Work performed by or on behalf of TSI under this Agreement causes damage to any of 
Authority’s property that is not subject to the Work, the Authority shall have the right to engage 
the services of another person or entity to perform such services, repair and/or remedial work, 
consistent with the requirements of its Procurement Policy, and TSI shall promptly reimburse the 
Authority for all costs and expenses incurred by the Authority in connection with such other 
person or entity performing such repair and/or remedial work. If the Authority is not promptly 
reimbursed, the Authority shall have the right to set off any such amounts against any payments 
due from the Authority to TSI pursuant to the provisions of Section 5.09 of this Agreement.   

(g) The warranties provided for in this Section do not apply:  

(1) if the equipment is subject to material damage or misuse due to fault or 
negligence of the Authority or third parties that substantially impairs its 
integrity; 

(2) to Force Majeure events, as defined in this Agreement;  

(3) to damage caused by power sources or by peripheral equipment not supplied by 
TSI; or  

(4) to the extent maintenance, modifications, or repairs are provided with respect 
to Phase 2 Maintenance by the Authority or third parties without TSI’s prior 
written approval and such services cause damage or cause TSI to be unable to 
perform the services hereunder or to be able to perform the services only at 
additional costs to TSI which are not reimbursed by the Authority.   



HCRMA Page 15 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(h) TSI represents that the following are true statements and will remain true for the term of this 
Agreement, including any renewals; provided such statements remain to be required under State 
law:  

(1) No Boycott of Israel Verification. Pursuant to Section 2271.002, Texas 
Government, TSI hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- or 
majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not Boycott Israel 
and, subject to or as otherwise required by applicable federal law, TSI agrees not 
to Boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement. For purposes of this Section, 
"Boycott Israel" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 808.001, 
Texas Government Code. TSI understands "affiliate" for this Section 4.07 to 
mean an entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with 
TSI and exists to make a profit. 

(2) No Boycott of Certain Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274.002, Texas 
Government Code, TSI hereby represents that it and its parent company, wholly- 
or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, does not boycott energy 
companies, and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 
contract. For purposes of this Section, "Boycott Energy Company" shall have the 
meaning given such term in Section 809.001, Texas Government Code.  

(3) No Discrimination Against Firearm and Ammunition Industries. Pursuant to 
Section 2274.003, Texas Government Code, TSI hereby represents that it and its 
parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, 
does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 
a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the 
term of the Agreement against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. For 
purposes of this Section, "discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association" shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2274.001, Texas 
Government Code. 

(4) No Contracts with Certain Companies. TSI and the person or persons executing 
the contract or contract amendment on behalf of TSI, or representing 
themselves as executing the contract or contract amendment on behalf of TSI 
(collectively, the “Signing Entities”), hereby acknowledge that (i) the Signing 
Entities do not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 
organization and (ii) the Signing Entities are not named on a list prepared and 
maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Section 2252.153 
or Section 2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the 
following pages of the Comptroller’s website: 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf; 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf; 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf. 

(5) No Conflict of Interest. Effective January 1, 2006, Chapter 176 of the Texas Local 
Government Code requires that any supplier or person doing business with a 
local government entity disclose in the Questionnaire Form CIQ, the supplier or 
person’s affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf


HCRMA Page 16 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

with a local government entity. By law, this questionnaire must be filed with the 
Records Administrator of the Authority not later than the 7th business day after 
the date the supplier or person becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code. A person 
commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local Government 
Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor. TSI represents that 
it has no conflict of interest that would in any way interfere with its or its 
employee’s performance of services for the Investor or which in any way 
conflicts with the interests of the Investor. TSI shall exercise reasonable care and 
diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with 
the Investor’s interests. 

(6) Nondiscrimination. TSI, with regard to work performed by it during this 
Agreement, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national 
origin. 

  
5.02 GOVERNING LAW – CHOICE OF FORUM 

The Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with Texas statues without taking into 
account conflicts of laws rules. The parties hereto expressly agree that the proper forum for adjudication 
of matters arising under or relating to the Agreement shall be Hidalgo County, Texas. 

5.03 SECTION HEADINGS 

Section Headings are included for section identification purposes only and are not to be considered 
Agreement terms. 

5.04 NOTICE PROVISIONS 

Notices under the Agreement Documents shall be in writing and  

(a) delivered personally, 

(b) sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

(c) sent by a recognized overnight mail or courier service, with delivery receipt requested, or  

(d) sent by email with a request of a read receipt of message and receipt confirmed by telephone. 

Individuals designated by the TSI and the Authority: 
 

(TSI) 

Address:  3610 Willowbend Blvd, suite 1026 
Attn:   Salvador Castromil 
Phone:   (281) 605-9777 
Email:   scastromil@sice.com 

mailto:tellesrl@crrma.org


HCRMA Page 17 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility (Authority) 

Address: 203 W. Newcombe Ave.  
Pharr, TX 78577 

Attn:   Mr. Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. Executive Director 
Phone:   956.402.4762 
Email:   prodriguez@hcrma.net 

In addition, copies of all notices to proceed and suspension, termination and default notices forwarded 
by either Party shall be delivered to the following Persons: 

Bracewell  LLP 

Address: 300 Convent St, Ste 2700 
San Antonio, Texas 78205 

Attn:   Ms. Blakely L. Fernandez 
Phone:   210.299.3410 
Email:   Blakely.Fernandez@bracewell.com 

 
All communications to the Authority shall be clearly marked with the contract number to identify 
this Agreement. 
 
5.05 ASSIGNMENT    BY     AUTHORITY  

(a) Neither party may assign its rights or delegate duties under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the other party, which will not be unreasonably withheld, provided that the 
Authority shall have the right, without the TSI’s consent, to assign all or any portion of its rights 
and delegate all or any portion of its duties under this Agreement to the Department of 
Transportation of the State of Texas (“TxDOT”) as required under the Project Development 
Agreement between TxDOT and the Authority, or to any successor entity to the Authority or to 
some or all of the Authority’s duties and responsibilities.  

(b) The TSI shall cooperate with and assist the Authority in connection with any transition of the 
maintenance of all or any portion of the Project as applicable to another maintenance provider. 
This cooperation and assistance shall include, but not be limited to, preparation of a detailed 
succession plan that shall be sufficient to assist the Authority and its new maintenance provider 
in accomplishing a non-disruptive transition of maintenance services for the Project. The 
Authority shall pay the TSI for its reasonable costs in connection with the preparation of such 
succession plan on a time and materials basis as set forth in Section 4.02. 

5.06 NOTICES TO PROCEED 

(a) The TSI shall not begin any Work Phase until the Authority issues an NTP or “GO LIVE” for the 
particular Work Phase.  Costs incurred by the TSI before an NTP/GO LIVE is issued are not eligible 
for reimbursement. 

mailto:tellesrl@crrma.org
mailto:prodriguez@hcrma.n


HCRMA Page 18 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(b) NTPs are issued at the discretion of the Authority.  While it is the Authority’s intent to issue NTPs 
hereunder, the TSI shall have no cause of action conditioned upon the lack or number of NTPs 
issued. 

5.07 PROGRESS 

(a) Inspections.   

The Work and all reimbursements may be subject to periodic review by the Authority and 
associated government agencies, including TxDOT and the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA). 

(b) Reports.   

The TSI shall promptly advise the Authority in writing of events that have a significant impact 
upon the progress of the Work, including: 

(1) problems, delays, or adverse conditions that will materially affect the ability to 
meet the time schedules and goals, or preclude the attainment of Guaranteed 
Dates; this disclosure will be accompanied by statement of the action taken or 
contemplated, and any Authority or federal assistance needed to resolve the 
situation; and 

(2) favorable developments or events which enable meeting the Guaranteed Dates 
sooner than anticipated. 

(c) Corrective Action.   

Should the Authority determine that the progress of Work does not satisfy the Guaranteed 
Dates, the Authority shall review the Project Schedule with the TSI to determine the nature of 
corrective action needed. 

5.08 SUSPENSION OF WORK 

(a) Notice.   

(1) Should the Authority desire to suspend Work but not terminate the Agreement, 
the Authority may verbally notify the TSI followed by written confirmation, giving 
30 days’ notice (unless an emergency situation prevents such notice); provided, 
that such suspension may not exceed 180 days, unless otherwise agreed to by 
the parties. Both parties may waive the 30-day notice in writing.   

(2) In the event that the Authority has not paid any undisputed invoice to TSI within 
60 days, TSI, after providing no less than 5 days’ written notice to the Authority,  
shall have the right to suspend its operations until such payment has been made, 
plus any additional costs associated with suspending its operations. 

 



HCRMA Page 19 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(b) Reinstatement.  

The Work may be reinstated and shall be resumed in full force and effect within 15 days of receipt 
of written notice from the Authority to resume the Work. Both parties may waive the 15-day 
notice in writing. 

(c) Effect of Suspension of Work on Agreement Time.  

If the Authority suspends the Work for reasons related to its own convenience and not due to 
the actions or fault of TSI, or if the TSI suspends the Agreement as set forth in this Article, then 
the affected Guaranteed Date(s) as determined in the Agreement shall be extended for the same 
number of days that the Work is suspended, plus a mutually agreed upon  number of additional 
days for re-mobilization of TSI’s resources, if any, and the period of the Agreement shall begin to 
run again whenever the Work is reinstated. Furthermore, the Authority shall pay all reasonable 
and necessary costs actually incurred by TSI in suspending the Work and restarting the Work.  If 
the Authority disagrees with the costs incurred by TSI in suspending and restarting the Work or 
with the number of additional days needed for re-mobilization of TSI’s resources, such dispute 
will be handled in accordance with Section 5.11 of the Agreement. 

(d) Limitation of Liability.  

Except as set forth in this Article, the Authority shall have no liability for Work performed or costs 
incurred, prior to the date authorized by the Authority to begin reinstated Work, during periods 
when Work is suspended, or after the completion date of the Agreement. 

5.09 TERMINATION 

(a) Causes 

The Agreement may be terminated due to any of the following conditions: 

(1) By mutual agreement and consent, in writing from both parties. 

(2) By Authority by notice in writing to the TSI as a consequence of failure by the TSI 
to perform the Work set forth in the Agreement Documents in a satisfactory 
manner. 

(3) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its material 
obligations as set forth in the Agreement Documents. The parties agree that TSI’s 
failure to receive payment on any undisputed invoice for a period of 60 days shall 
be a failure of a party to fulfill its material obligations. 

(4) By Authority for reasons of its own, not subject to the mutual consent of the TSI, 
by giving 30 days’ notice of termination in writing to the TSI. 

(5) By either party, without consent or advance notice to the other, in the event this 
Agreement is declared void or unenforceable by a court or tribunal of competent 
jurisdiction. 



HCRMA Page 20 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(6) By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations described herein. 

 
Prior to termination pursuant to 5.09(a)(2) and 5.09(a)(3), above, the party that has failed to 
perform or fulfill its material obligations shall be afforded  30 days, following receipt of written 
notice from the other party, to initiate cure the failure; provided that, unless otherwise agreed 
to by the parties, such cure must be complete within 60 days. 

 
(b) Measurement 

Should Authority terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and 
payable at the time of termination shall thereafter be paid to the TSI. The value of the work 
performed by the TSI prior to termination shall be determined in accordance with Section 5.09(d). 
Compensation for work at termination will be based on a percentage of the work completed at 
that time. Should Authority terminate the Agreement under Section 5.09(a)(4) above, the TSI shall 
not incur costs during the 30-day notice period in excess of the amount incurred during the 
preceding 30 days. 
 

(c) Value of Completed Work 

If the TSI defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if Authority terminates this 
Agreement for fault on the part of the TSI, Authority will give consideration, in its sole discretion, 
to the following when calculating the value of the completed Work:  

(1) the actual costs incurred (not to exceed the prices set forth in Volume 11B_ 
Price Proposal Form) in performing the Work to the date of default;  

(2) the amount of Work required which was satisfactorily completed to date of 
default;  

(3) the value of the Work which is usable to Authority;  

(4) the cost to Authority of employing another firm to complete the required Work, 
including replacing or reperforming unsatisfactory Work, if any;  

(5) the time required to employ another firm to complete the Work; and  

(6) other factors which affect the value to Authority of the Work performed. If 
Authority terminates the Agreement for reasons of its own, not subject to the 
mutual consent of the TSI, in accordance with Section 5.09(a)(4) above, or 
Authority terminates the Agreement in response to a court decision in 
accordance with Section 5.09(a)(5) above, then 

a) with respect to the Phase 1 Implementation, Authority will pay to the TSI 
the fair and reasonable value of the Work completed in accordance with 
the Agreement up to the termination date. In such event, Authority will 
give consideration, in its sole discretion, to the following when 
calculating the value of the completed Work:  



HCRMA Page 21 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

i) the actual cost incurred (not to exceed the prices set forth in 
Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form) by the TSI in performing the 
Work to the date of termination;  

ii) the amount of Work required which was satisfactorily 
completed to the date of termination;  

iii) the value of the Work which is useable to Authority; and  

iv) other factors which affect the value to Authority of the Work 
performed; and 

b) with respect to Phase 2 Maintenance, the TSI shall immediately invoice 
Authority for all accrued and unpaid Monthly Fees (not to exceed the 
prices set forth in Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form), and Authority shall 
pay the invoiced amount pursuant to Section 3.03, provided, however, 
that Authority shall have the right to set-off against such invoiced 
amount any and all amounts due or that may be due to Authority from 
the TSI as a result of a breach of the TSI’s obligations or representations 
and warranties set forth in Section 5.01. 

(d) Calculation of Payments 

Authority shall use the Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form in determining the value of Work 
performed on Phase 1 Implementation up to the time of termination. The sum of the overhead 
percentage rate for payroll additives and for general and administrative overhead costs during 
the years in which Work was performed on Phase 1 Implementation shall be used to calculate 
partial payments. Any portion of the fixed fee not previously paid in the partial payments shall 
not be included in the final payment. 

(e) Excusable Delays  

Except with respect to defaults of Sub-Contractors, the TSI shall not be in default by reason of 
any failure in performance of the Agreement in accordance with its terms (including any failure 
to progress in the performance of the Work) if such failure arises out of causes beyond the 
control and without the default or negligence of the TSI (including without limitation non-
chargeable failures as set forth in Section 09-6 of the RFP), or meeting the definition of Force 
Majeure Events as set forth and qualified in Section 5.30  

Furthermore, the Authority shall pay all reasonable and necessary costs actually incurred by TSI 
to the extent the Excusable Delays or the Non-Chargeable Failures are not due to the default or 
negligence of the TSI, the TSI shall be entitled to be compensated for the proven direct costs 
derived from Excusable Delays or the reparation of the Non-chargeable failures (which shall 
include a reasonable overhead and profit amount based upon pricing previously agreed upon by 
the parties). Excusable Delays shall be subject to the payment provisions of Section 5.08. 

 

 



HCRMA Page 22 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(f) Materials 

In the event of any termination of this Agreement, the Authority shall have the right, but no 
obligation, to purchase any existing spares and consumables inventory that are not already paid 
for by the Authority under this Agreement. In addition, in the event of any termination of this 
Agreement for any reason, the TSI shall return all keys to Authority and both parities’ obligations 
with respect to TSI Confidential Information and Authority Confidential Information, as each is 
defined in Section 5.31 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

(g) Surviving Requirements 

The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed above 
shall extinguish the rights, duties, and obligations of Authority and the TSI under the Agreement 
Documents, except for those provisions that establish responsibilities that extend beyond the 
term of the Agreement or as otherwise provided in any other Agreement Document. In the event 
of termination and upon the Authority’s request, TSI shall provide transition services for 30 to 
90 days to the Authority under a plan using the pricing structure then in place.  

 

5.10 RIGHT TO SETOFF 

The Authority shall have the right, without being in breach of any of its obligations hereunder, to set off 
any amounts payable by the TSI to Authority under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, Phase 1 
and Phase 2 Liquidated Damages, against any amounts payable by the Authority to the TSI. 

 

5.11 DISPUTES 

(a) Disputes Not Related to Agreement Services 

The TSI shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising 
out of any procurement made by the TSI in support of the Work authorized herein. 

(b) Disputes Concerning Work or Cost 

Any dispute between the parties as to the interpretation of, subject matter of, or in any way 
related to, any one or more of the Agreement Documents or additional costs, or any non-
procurement issues, is to be resolved by the two parties attempting to reach a fair and equitable 
resolution by using good faith negotiation followed by, if necessary, one or more of the following 
means. The means to be used are: 

(1) mediation; and/or 

(2) legal proceedings in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 



HCRMA Page 23 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

5.12 OWNERSHIP OF DATA AND DELIVERABLES 

(a) Ownership of Material 

Ownership of all data, materials, and documentation originated and prepared for the Authority 
pursuant to the RFP and under the Agreement shall belong exclusively to the Authority and be 
subject to public inspection in accordance with applicable law. 

Subject to compliance with law, the Authority acknowledges that certain proprietary software 
and all related software documentation furnished under the Agreement Documents may 
constitute valuable assets of the TSI and, as between the Authority and the TSI, is proprietary 
information and property of the TSI, and that, by virtue of the Agreement Documents, the 
Authority shall acquire only the license and right to use the proprietary software and related 
software documentation under the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement Documents 
and that the Authority shall not acquire any rights of ownership in or title to the proprietary 
software and any source codes or related software documentation. 

Proprietary software and related software documentation shall be used only by employees of the 
Authority and any third parties whose services are necessary to the Authority exercise of its rights 
hereunder and as expressly permitted hereunder.  

(b) Works for Hire 

All Work provided under the Agreement Documents are considered works for hire, except as 
otherwise specified in Paragraph C. of this section, and as such all data, basic sketches, charts, 
calculations, plans, specifications, deliverables, and other documents created or collected 
incident to such work for hire under the terms of the Agreement Documents are the property of 
the Authority. The Authority shall have all rights, title and interest in or to all products, work plans, 
designs, programs, data bases, documentation, manuals, licenses and other Work developed or 
generated under the Agreement Documents, including, without limitation, unlimited rights to 
use, sell, make or duplicate, modify or disclose any part thereof, in any manner and for any 
purpose, and the right to permit or prohibit any other person, including the TSI, from doing so. To 
the extent the TSI may be deemed at any time to have any of the foregoing rights, the TSI agrees 
to assign and does hereby assign such rights to the Authority. 

(c) Software Delivery 

TSI will deliver to the Authority all Software that is to be modified, customized, or implemented 
pursuant to the Agreement to meet the requirements in Attachment E – Technical Provision. 
Notwithstanding anything else in this section, all Software being delivered to the Authority is 
proprietary software of TSI. The Authority shall receive a license to such Software, and shall 
acquire no other right, title, or interest in or to such Software. This provision shall control over 
other provisions in the Agreement Documents. The TSI shall provide any Software License 
Agreement(s) for HCRMA’s review prior to signing the Agreement. 

 



HCRMA Page 24 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(d)  Disposition of Documents 

All documents prepared by the TSI as part of Work provided under the Agreement Documents 
and all documents furnished to the TSI by the Authority shall be delivered to the Authority upon 
request by the Authority.  The TSI, at its own expense, may retain copies of such documents or 
any other data which it has furnished the Authority under the Agreement Documents, but may 
only further use that data to the extent expressly authorized in the Agreement Documents. 

(e) Release of Design Plans 

The TSI 

(1) will not release any plans created or collected under the Agreement Documents 
except to its subcontractors as necessary to complete the Work; 

(2) shall include a provision in all subcontracts which acknowledges the Authority’s 
ownership of the plans and prohibits their use for any use other than on behalf 
of the Authority under the Agreement Documents; and 

(3) is responsible for any improper use of the plans by its employees, officers, or 
subcontractors, including costs, damages, or other liability resulting from 
improper use. Neither the TSI nor any subcontractor may charge a fee for the 
portion of the plans created by the Authority. 

5.13 PUBLIC INFORMATION 

The Authority will comply with Government Code, Chapter 552, the Public Information Act (PIA), and 43 
Texas Administrative Code §3.10 et seq. in the release of information produced under the Agreement. 
The TSI has asserted that all Software delivered by the TSI to the Authority is deemed by the TSI to be 
proprietary, confidential, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under the PIA. The Authority will use 
reasonable efforts to notify the TSI if a request for public information is received which may require the 
Authority to disclose any portion of the Software or any other material that the Proposer has clearly 
marked as proprietary, confidential, or otherwise exempt from disclosure under the PIA so as to allow the 
TSI the opportunity to exercise its third party rights to protect such materials from public disclosure. The 
Authority is not obligated to and will not assert or argue on behalf of the TSI that any information provided 
to the Authority is exempt from required disclosure and shall not be liable for the disclosure of any 
information submitted by the TSI. 

5.14 PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL 

(a) TSI Resources 

The TSI shall furnish and maintain quarters for the performance of all Work, in addition to 
providing adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the Work required under 
the Agreement. The TSI certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its 
employment for performance of the Work required under the Agreement Documents, or it will 
be able to obtain such personnel from sources other than the Authority. 



HCRMA Page 25 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(b) Removal of TSI Employee 

All employees of the TSI assigned to this Agreement shall have such knowledge and experience as 
will enable them to perform the duties assigned to them.  The Authority may instruct the TSI to 
remove any employee from association with Work authorized in the Agreement Documents if, in 
the sole opinion of the Authority, the work of that employee does not comply with the terms of 
the Agreement Documents or if the conduct of that employee becomes detrimental to the 
successful completion of the Work. 

(c) Replacement of Key Project Personnel 

The TSI must notify the Authority in writing as soon as possible, but no later than three business 
days after a person designated as Key Project Personnel is removed from association with this 
Agreement, giving the reason for removal. 

(d) Authority Approval of Replacement Personnel 

The TSI may not replace Key Project Personnel without substituting replacements in their 
positions having equivalent qualifications and notifying the Authority of such replacements which 
notice shall include the qualifications of the successors without the prior written consent of the 
Authority. The Authority must be satisfied that the new Key Project Personnel subject to this 
Paragraph is qualified to provide the authorized services. If the Authority determines that the new 
Key Project Personnel subject to this Paragraph is not acceptable, the TSI may not use that person 
in that capacity and shall replace him or her with one satisfactory to the Authority within 45 days. 

5.15 SOLICITATION FOR EMPLOYMENT 

TSI hereby agrees that, during the term of this Agreement and for a period of six months thereafter, the 
TSI shall not recruit for employment any person or entity who or which is an employee of the Authority.   

5.16 SUBCONTRACTING 

(a) Approval 

The TSI shall not assign, subcontract, or transfer any portion of the services related to the Work 
under the Agreement Documents without prior written approval from the Authority; provided, 
however, that this does not limit TSI’s subcontracting to other firms to furnish specialized 
technology components and services that the TSI does not manufacture or produce in-house. The 
Authority shall respond to a TSI’s request under this Section 5.16 to assign, subcontract or transfer 
any portion of the services within 10 days of receipt of the request. The Authority approves the 
suppliers and technologies nominated in the TSI’s technical proposal; however, this approval does 
not relieve the TSI of its obligations to perform as per the contract requirements including, but 
not limited to, the standards provided in Volume 2, Milestones and Volume 9, Performance 
Requirements.  

 



HCRMA Page 26 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

(b) Required Provisions 

All subcontracts for Work under this Agreement shall include the provisions included in this 
Agreement, and any provisions required by law. The TSI is authorized to pay the subcontractors 
in accordance with the terms of the subcontract, and the basis of payment may differ from the 
basis of payment by the Authority to the TSI. 

(c) Prior Review 

Subcontracts in excess of $25,000 shall be subject to review and approval by the Authority prior 
to performance of work thereunder. 

(d) TSI Responsibilities 

No subcontract relieves the TSI of any responsibilities under the Agreement Documents. 

 

5.17 INSPECTION OF WORK 

The TSI shall furnish the Authority, and its authorized representatives, with every reasonable opportunity 
and facility for inspection and making certain that the Work under this Agreement is performed, and the 
materials are furnished in accordance with the requirements and intent of the Agreement Documents. 
Such inspection may include plant and/or shop visits and extensive field inspection during the toll 
equipment installation and testing phases. The Authority and its authorized representatives reserve the 
right to perform a plant or shop visit, as long as they provide two working days’ notice prior to the actual 
visit. 
 
5.18 AUTHORITY RESPONSES 

The Authority agrees to use its best efforts to respond in a timely manner to all submittals made by TSI 
and to all of TSI’s written requests for input, interpretation, clarification, confirmation, or information in 
sufficient detail to permit TSI to proceed with its Work without delay. 
 
5.19 OBLIGATION TO PERFORM FUNCTIONS 
 

(a) Any failure or neglect on the part of the Authority to enforce provisions provided in the 
Agreement dealing with supervision, control, inspection, testing, or acceptance and approval of 
the Work shall not relieve the TSI from full compliance with the Agreement Documents, nor 
render the Authority liable to the TSI for money damages, extensions of time, or increased 
compensation of any kind.  

 
(b) The TSI shall not be held responsible for any time extensions which are solely initiated by the 

Authority or attributable to acts or omissions of the Authority.  Such delays shall toll TSI’s 
performance compliance by the same number of days. 



HCRMA Page 27 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

 
5.20 COMPLIANCE  
 

(a) The TSI shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, 
rules, and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any manner affecting the performance of the Agreement, including, without 
limitation, worker's compensation laws, minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and 
regulations, nondiscrimination, and licensing laws and regulations. When required, the TSI shall 
furnish the Authority with satisfactory proof of its compliance therewith. 

(b) TSI further covenants at all times to perform its duties and obligations hereunder in compliance 
with all applicable federal, state, local laws, and regulations necessary for the Project and this 
Agreement to be eligible for existing and potential state and federal funding, including, 
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA), State Infrastructure Bank (SIB), 
or other public funding.  

(c) All collection equipment and technology utilized in the performance of this Agreement shall 
comply with the Texas Department of Transportation and other applicable interoperability rules. 

(d) This Agreement is subject to review by the Texas State Auditor.  

(e) If TSI is owned by or affiliated with the Construction Contractor for the 365 Tollway Project, the 
Construction Contractor and TSI shall agree that no Value Engineering Change Proposal under 
the Construction Contract shall be submitted with regard to or related to the design or 
implementation of the Project. 

 

5.21 TSI'S RESPONSIBILITY 
 

(a) Accuracy 

The TSI shall be responsible for the accuracy of Work and shall promptly make necessary revisions 
or corrections resulting from its errors, omissions, or negligent acts without compensation. 

(b) Errors and Omissions 

The TSI’s responsibility for all matters arising from design errors and/or omissions will be 
determined by the Authority. The TSI will not be relieved of the responsibility for subsequent 
correction of any such errors or omissions or for clarification of any ambiguities until after the 
Warranty Phase has been completed.  

(c) Service Levels 

The TSI shall meet the service levels described to in the Agreement Documents. 

 



HCRMA Page 28 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

5.22 PERMITS, LICENSES, FEES AND TAXES 

The TSI is responsible for obtaining all permits and licenses which are not provided by the Authority and 
must pay all charges and fees and give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful 
prosecution of the Work under the Agreement Documents. 

5.23 COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS 

The TSI shall work closely with any other contractors who will be working for the Authority and for TxDOT 
for the purpose of coordinating any activity which may affect both parties, including the Authority and/or 
TxDOT contractors engaged in road construction, and contractors performing toll equipment installation, 
equipment testing, power requirements, conduit requirements, etc. It will be critical that close 
coordination between the TSI, and other contractors is maintained during the life of the Agreement. 

5.24 INSURANCE 

The TSI shall secure and maintain insurance in its own name and at its own expense with insurance 
companies which are rated at least A-VII by A.M. Best Company. The TSI shall not commence Work under 
the Agreement Documents until it has provided insurance of such character and in such amounts shown 
below as will provide adequate protection for the Authority, its employees, its authorized representatives, 
and others lawfully on its property and for the TSI, against all liabilities, damages, and accidents, or has 
provided equivalent protection by some Authority approved method.  The TSI shall maintain such 
insurance or equivalent protection in force during the life of this Agreement. The TSI shall furnish the 
Authority with satisfactory proof of carriage of insurance prior to execution of the Agreement, and no 
modification or change or insurance carriage and provisions shall be made without 30-days written 
advance notice to the Authority. A memorandum of issuance shall be available to the Authority stating 
the Authority and TxDOT are additional insureds, on a primary and non-contributory basis. Neither 
approval by the Authority, nor a failure to disapprove insurance furnished by the TSI, shall release the TSI 
of full responsibility for liability, damages, and accidents, as set forth herein. 

If any operations are performed on the construction site by a sub-contractor, the TSI shall carry on its own 
behalf protective Liability and Property Damages Insurance at the same limits set forth for its own 
operations. 

Before the TSI, or any subcontractor, will be permitted to enter upon the right-of-way of the Project, the 
policies for the foregoing insurance shall have been approved by the Authority and certificates therefore 
filed, as above required. 

The minimum acceptable limits of coverage are: 

• Commercial General Liability (each occurrence) $1,000,000 
• Commercial General Liability (Aggregate) $2,000,000 
• Employee Liability $1,000,000 
• Workers Compensation Statutory 



HCRMA Page 29 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

• Commercial Auto Liability, Bodily Injury and  
Property Damage including all owned, hired and  
non-owned vehicles. $1,000,000 

• Excess/Umbrella Liability $5,000,000* 
• Builders Risk $[Phase 1 amount] ** 
• Professional Liability Insurance $2,000,000 
• Contractors Pollution Legal Liability $5,000,000 

* In addition to the primary coverage listed, an umbrella or excess liability policy of not less than 
$5,000,000 for any one occurrence of general liability, automobile liability, casualty (casualty, 
shall include but not be limited to any damage, theft, or other loss of the Authority’s spare parts 
stored by the TSI on behalf of the Authority) and employers’ liability. 

** TSI shall be responsible for the Builders Risk insurance during Phase 1 and up to Go-Live. The property 
of the Toll Collection System and its risk of loss shall be transferred to the Authority at Go-Live, the 
property insurance shall be held by the Authority during the Phase 2 Maintenance. IN ADDITION TO ANY 
INDEMNIFICATION PROVISIONS SET FORTH IN SECTION 5.25 OR ANY OTHER AGREEMENT 
DOCUMENT, THE TSI (AND  TSI’S  DIRECT  PARENT, IF ANY)  SHALL FULLY INDEMNIFY AND  HOLD 
HARMLESS THE AUTHORITY, EACH OF THE AUTHORITY’S AFFILIATES (INCLUDING TXDOT), AND 
EACH OF THEIR RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES, 
CONTRACTORS, AGENTS AND REPRESENTATIVES (EACH INDIVIDUALLY, AN “AUTHORITY 
INDEMNIFIED PARTY” AND COLLECTIVELY, THE “AUTHORITY INDEMNIFIED PARTIES”) FROM AND 
AGAINST ANY AND ALL DAMAGES, LIABILITY, LOSSES, COSTS, EXPENSES, SUITS, ACTIONS, 
PROCEEDINGS, CLAIMS, JUDGMENTS, AWARDS, PENALTIES, ATTORNEY’S FEES AND EXPENSES OF 
(COLLECTIVELY, “CLAIMS”), OF WHATSOEVER NATURE, PAST, PRESENT, OR FUTURE, ARISING 
FROM OR OUT OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT BY THE TSI TO THE EXTENT CAUSED, 
WHETHER IN WHOLE OR IN PART, BY REASON OF THE TSI’S, ITS OFFICERS’, DIRECTORS’, AGENTS’, 
EMPLOYEES’, SUB-CONTRACTORS’, OR REPRESENTATIVES’ FAILURE TO OBTAIN THE PROPER 
INSURANCE COVERAGES SPECIFIED UNDER THIS SECTION 5.24. THE TSI (AND TSI’S DIRECT 
PARENT, IF ANY) EACH HEREBY WAIVES POTENTIAL IMMUNITY AVAILABLE TO IT UNDER THE 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACTS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS OR ANY OTHER STATES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGES AND RECOGNIZES THAT THE TSI (AND TSI’S DIRECT PARENT, IF ANY) ARE EACH 
ASSUMING POTENTIAL LIABILITY FOR ACTIONS BROUGHT BY TSI’S OWN EMPLOYEES ARISING 
OUT OF THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT BY THE TSI BUT ONLY WITH RESPECT TO 
CLAIMS AGAINST THE TSI BY THE AUTHORITY FOR INDEMNITY UNDER THIS PROVISION. THIS 
INDEMNIFICATION SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR EARLIER TERMINATION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT. 

 

 

 



HCRMA Page 30 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

5.25 INDEMNIFICATION 

(a) Errors, Omissions, Negligent acts 

In addition to any indemnification provisions set forth in any other agreement document, the TSI 
shall fully indemnify and hold harmless (and at the Authority’s request, defend) the Authority 
Indemnified Parties from any and Claims, of whatsoever nature, past, present or future, arising 
from, out of, or related to the performance of this Agreement by the TSI to the extent caused, 
whether in whole or in part, by reason of the TSI’s, its members’, officers’, directors’, 
shareholders’, managers’, agents’, employees’, subcontractors’, or representatives’ error or 
omission or negligent acts or willful misconduct or material breach of this agreement. This 
indemnity shall not apply to losses caused solely by the  

(1) negligence of Authority or its employees, or  
(2) Authority’s material breach of this agreement.  

 This indemnification shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  

(b) Attorney Fees 

Each party shall, to the extent allowed by law, save harmless the prevailing party from any and all 
expense, including, but not limited to, attorney fees which may be incurred by the prevailing party 
in litigation or otherwise resisting claims or liabilities which may be imposed on the other party 
as a result of activities by the other party, its agents, or employees. 

  
(c) Conduct of Claims 

(1) An Authority Indemnified Party shall promptly give notice to the TSI of any claim, 
whether between the parties or brought by a third party, specifying in 
reasonable detail the factual basis for the claim; provided, however, that the 
failure to give prompt notice shall not jeopardize the right of any Authority 
Indemnified Party to indemnification except to the extent such failure shall have 
materially prejudiced the ability of the TSI to defend such claim. Such notice shall 
be given by the Authority Indemnified Party as promptly as reasonably 
practicable, but within 20 business days after the Authority Indemnified Party 
becomes aware of such claim.  

5.26 MAINTENANCE, RETENTION AND AUDIT OF RECORDS 

(a) Retention Period 

The TSI shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records and other evidence 
pertaining to costs incurred and Work provided (hereinafter called the Records).  The TSI shall 
make the Records available at its office during the term of the Agreement and for four years from 
the date of final payment under the Agreement, until completion of all audits, or until pending 
litigation has been completely and fully resolved, whichever occurs last. Provided, however, that 



HCRMA Page 31 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

if certain electronic, Personally Identifiable information, financial, or other information acquired 
by TSI in performance of the Work requires specific retention, protection, or deletion/destruction 
obligations, TSI agrees to comply with all state and federal laws, regulations and guidelines, and  
industry best-practices.  

(b) Availability 

The Authority or any of its duly authorized representatives shall have access to the TSI’s records 
which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purpose of making audits, examinations, 
excerpts and transcriptions. 

5.27 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The TSI and the Authority do each hereby bind themselves, their successors, executors, administrators 
and assigns to each other party of this Agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and 
assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. The TSI shall not assign, 
subcontract or transfer its interest in the Agreement without the prior written consent of the Authority.  

5.28 SEVERABILITY 

In the event any one or more of the provisions contained in the Agreement Documents shall for any 
reason, be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if 
such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

5.29 BOND REQUIREMENTS 

The TSI shall provide to the Authority as obligee a Payment Bond and a separate Performance Bond for 
Phase 1 (the “Bond”) issued by a responsible surety company acceptable to the Authority and legally 
authorized to do business in the State of Texas. The Bond shall be in a form acceptable to the Authority. 

Within 15 days of the execution of the Agreement and prior to NTP, the TSI shall provide the Bond. The 
penal sum of the Bond shall be the estimated amount for the Phase 1 Implementation (Schedule A, B and 
C) as presented in the Summary table of Volume 11B - Price Proposal Form, and the Bond shall remain in 
place until Phase 1 System Acceptance. If  a Bond acceptable to the Authority is not delivered to the 
Authority prior to the expiration of the 15 day period, the Authority shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement, with no penalties assessed against the TSI; at which time the Agreement shall be of no further 
force and effect, and the Authority shall not be obligated to the TSI for any work that the TSI may have 
performed up to and including the date of such termination. 

The TSI shall have failed to satisfy its obligations under this Section 5.29 if the surety company requests 
modifications or changes to the Agreement Documents, or requests other separate agreements from the 
Authority, that the Authority, in its sole discretion, deems unacceptable. The premium for the Bond shall 
be borne by the TSI. 

 



HCRMA Page 32 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

5.30 FORCE MAJEURE 

TSI shall be entitled to an extension of the Guaranteed Date(s) for (i) completion of a specified portion of 
the Project and, (ii) pursuant to the terms of the Agreement Documents, during the maintenance phase 
of the project, from failures to meet performance requirements detailed in Volume 9 - Performance 
Requirements, due to certain specified Force Majeure Events that are outside the control of TSI. Such 
Force Majeure Events shall be limited to the following: any earthquake, tornado, hurricane, flood or other 
natural disaster, fire, freight embargo, strike, blockade, rebellion, war, riot, or act of sabotage. TSI shall 
only be entitled to an extension of the Guaranteed Date(s), however, if any such Force Majeure Event 
materially and adversely affects TSI’s obligations, and provided such Force Majeure Event is beyond the 
control of the TSI and is not due to an act, omission, negligence, recklessness, willful misconduct, breach 
of contract or law by TSI and further provided that such Force Majeure Event (or the effects of such Force 
Majeure Event) could not have been avoided by the exercise of caution, due diligence, or reasonable 
efforts by TSI. Should a Force Majeure Event happen, TSI shall be reimbursed for all reasonable and 
necessary costs actually incurred by TSI to repair the consequences and damages caused by the Force 
Majeure event, unless otherwise covered by proceeds of insurance. The TSI agrees to pursue TSI’s 
available insurances claims before seeking reimbursement from the Authority. Under no circumstances 
will lack of human or financial resources be construed to constitute Force Majeure. 

5.31 CERTAIN DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the meaning indicated below: 

"Affiliate" means, with respect to a specified Person, any other Person, whether now in existence or 
hereafter created, directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under direct or indirect common 
control of such specified Person.  For purposes of this definition, “control” (including, with correlative 
meanings, “controlling,” “controlled by,” and “under common control with”) means the power to direct 
or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person, directly or indirectly, whether 
through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. 

"TSI Confidential Information" means all information and data furnished by the TSI to the Authority and 
so marked or otherwise identified in writing by the TSI as confidential, excluding Standard Exceptions. 

“Authority Confidential Information” means:   

a) Information relating to the Authority's owned or licensed (but excluding such information 
licensed from TSI) computer systems and systems architecture, including computer hardware, 
computer software, databases, algorithms, including source code, object code, commentary and 
documentation, program libraries, program listings, business methods, methods of processing, 
technical processes, and operational methods, all of the foregoing individually and which 
comprise software;  

b) Confidential information of third parties including that relating to software and software licenses 
(but excluding such information licensed from TSI), hardware, documentation, business plans, 
financial information, Authority lists and other business affairs;  



HCRMA Page 33 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

c) All trade secrets owned by or licensed by the Authority (but excluding such information licensed 
from the TSI);  

d) Authority's existing services, designs, technology, processes, technical data, engineering 
techniques, methodologies, and concepts;  

e) Algorithms and Business Rules developed by the Authority and its Affiliates and used in 
configuring the Software which are not modifications to the computer software comprising the 
Software; and  

f) All information or proprietary materials (in every form and media) not generally known in the 
relevant trade or industry but commonly and uniformly treated as confidential and which has 
been or is hereafter disclosed or made available by the Authority to the TSI and its successors, 
assignees, subcontractors, consultants, employees, and agents, in connection with the  
Agreement who are permitted access and disclosure pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, in 
the case of (a) – (g) modifications and derivative works of the foregoing, but excludes information 
and materials described in the Standard Exceptions. 

"Direct Parent" shall mean with respect to a specified Person, any other Person having the power to direct 
or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person, directly, whether through the 
ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. 

“Person” means any individual, corporation, company, voluntary association, partnership, joint venture, 
trust, limited liability company, unincorporated organization or government or any agency, 
instrumentality, or political subdivision thereof, or any other form of entity. 

“Standard Exceptions” means information which the receiving party can prove:   

a) Is in the public domain on or prior to the date hereof;  

b) Was in the possession of the recipient thereof or its Affiliates on or prior to the date hereof and 
was not acquired or obtained from the discloser of such information or its Affiliates;  

c) Became part of the public domain, by publication or otherwise, not due to any unauthorized act 
or omission on the part of the recipient thereof or its Affiliates; or  

d) Is supplied to the recipient or its Affiliates by a third party as a matter of right and, to the 
recipient’s knowledge, is not in violation of any confidentiality agreement between such third 
party and the discloser of such information. 

[signature page to follow] 

  



HCRMA Page 34 of 34 Bid No: 2022-002 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above 
written. 

AUTHORITY (HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY): 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________   
        Mr. Pilar Rodriguez, P.E.  
        Executive Director 
 
 
 
 
TSI (SICE, Inc.)                                                                                    :                                                                                                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
Mr. Salvador Castromil 
Executive Vice-President – SICE, Inc. 



 
 

  
SICE Inc. 1 

 

April 20th, 2023 
 
 
Pilar Rodriguez, PE 
Executive director 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA) 
203 W. Newcombe Ave., Pharr, Texas 78577 
 
 
RE:  Clarification to the Contract Documents 

Dear Mr. Rodriguez, 

The parties agree to the below clarifications to the Contract Documents as referred in the section 01-4 (a) 
of the Contract.  

1. Spare Parts 
The parties agree that HCRMA requires additional spare parts as per the Attachment A. Spare Parts 
will be compensated on a pass-through basis.  
 

2. Image Review 
 
As per HCRMA requirements, the TCS system will have the option to set the double-blind 
configuration, however the image review price included in subcontract is for offshore single blind, 
and it does not consider that the double-blind configuration will be active. While HCRMA does not 
require a double-blind review of image-based transactions at this time, SICE shall still meet the 
image review key performance indicators and Service Level Agreements, as detailed in the RFP 
Section 9-08 Performance Requirements 
 
The parties agree that the proposed image review fee has been calculated assuming that SICE will 
be entitled to charge the fee for: 
 
i. Any image-based transaction regardless the transaction is finally manually processed by 

an operator or automatically managed by the TCS due to high OCR confidences, PHS 
automatic rules or other automatic procedures to be agreed during the design phase of 
the Project, and 
 

ii. Any tag-based transaction that due to HCRMA business rules, must be managed as an 
image-based transaction (for example, the requirements of section 05-17 Image 
Processing Business Rules).  

 
All those transactions will be considered as image-based transactions.  
 



 
 

  
SICE Inc. 2 

 

 
 
 

3. High Speed Testing 
The parties agree that during the FAT, High speed testing will be proven through technical reports 
for the 365 Toll Road, before the commencement of the next testing phase. 

 
4. Toll Site Maintenance Area 

The parties agree that SICE will construct the maintenance area as per conceptual design of the 
RFP and that the civil contractor will stabilize at final grade the area where the maintenance pad 
will be installed and provide a nearby suitable access and parking area for the tolling maintenance 
vehicles. 

5. Pavement Works 

The parties agree that Paving and Maintenance of the pavement works are excluded from the 
Scope of Work of the TSI. 

6. Refueling 

The parties agree that, as part of the O&M obligations, the TSI will perform the refueling of the 
generators, however providing the power is an HCRMA responsibility, and, therefore, the fuel 
spent during power outages will be compensated to the TSI at cost as a pass-through item. 

7. Payment breakdown 

The parties agree to perform all the payments as per the Contract; but also agree to replacing 
Table 2 of Section 3-19 of Volume 3 in the RFP with the table included in the Attachment B to this 
document. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this clarification to the Contract Documents. 
 
AUTHORITY (HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY): 
 
By: _______________________________________   
        Mr. Pilar Rodriguez, P.E.  
        Executive Director 
 
TSI (SICE Inc.) 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
      Mr. Salvador Castromil 
      Executive Vice-President 



 
 

  
SICE Inc. 3 

 

Attachment A – Spare Parts 
 

 
 



 
 

  
SICE Inc. 4 

 

Attachment B – Payment Milestones Breakdown 
 

 
 



Item 4A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                  4A                       

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED        4/19/2023                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE      4/25/2023     
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  CHAIRMAN’S REPORT – DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION TO ACT AS 

LOCAL SPONSOR OF RAIL PROJECTS.________ ___________________________     ____                    
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Discussion and consideration to act as Local Sponsor of Rail Projects.    ___________________ 
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation:                                   _________________________                  

.            
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_  None 
 
10.       Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved    X    None 
 
11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:       Approved         Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

THIS ITEM WILL BE 

SENT UNDER 

SEPERATE COVER 


	Notice of Agenda
	Agenda Item Workshop 1 - Review of Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item Workshop 2 - Review of Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item Workshop 3 - Review of the Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2023
	Agenda Item 1A - Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document 
	Agenda Item 1B - Report on Construction Activity for 365 Tollway Project 
	Agenda Item 2A - Approval of Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held March 28, 2023
	Agenda Item 2B - Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from March 8, 2023 to April 7, 2023
	Agenda Item 2C - Approval of Financial Reports for January 2023
	Agenda Item 2D - Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Period Ending March 31, 2023
	Agenda Item 3A - Resolution 2023-14 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item 3B - Resolution 2023-15 – Consideration and Approval of Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Compliance Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority
	Agenda Item 3C - Resolution 2023-16 – Award of 365 Tollway Toll Collection System Installation, Integration and Maintenance Contract
	Agenda Item 4A - Discussion and consideration to act as Local Sponsor of Rail Projects.



